
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
DECEMBER 19, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

December 19, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Dan Lewis – Troy Christian 
Chapel 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Certificates of Appreciation to all City Departments/Divisions from the Mayor 
and City Council In Recognition of Outstanding and Dedicated Service to the 
Community ........................................................................................................... 1 

b) Presentation from Representative Robert Gosselin Regarding City of Troy’s 
Morgan-Quitno Press “Safest Cities” Rating......................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3539 Delaware 1 

C-2 Request for Special Use Approval for Outdoor Seating in Excess of 20 Seats in 
Conjunction with a Restaurant in O-M Zoning – 911 Wilshire Drive – Kruse and 
Muer Restaurant 3 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

D-1 No Postponed Items 4 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National 
League of Cities (NLC) 2006 Annual Congressional City Conference.................. 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Fleet Vehicles.................................................................................. 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Fleet Vehicles.................................................................................. 5 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000.00:  Southeast 
Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 2005 Membership Dues.............. 5 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Standard and 
Compound Water Meters ..................................................................................... 5 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to 
Expend City Funds – Buffer Zone Protection Grant.............................................. 6 

E-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Angel 
Society, Inc. for the Purpose of Hosting Fundraising Events 6 

E-6 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 Application 
Amendment 6 

E-7 Approval of Quit Claim Deed for Part of Vacated Bronx Avenue and Part of Lot 35 
of Lasier Gardens Subdivision from City of Troy to Troy Sports Center Properties, 
L.L.C. and Authorization for Signatures – Sidwell #88-20-23-476-011 7 

E-8 Request for Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plans 7 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council 
Appointments: Advisory Commission for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals – Planning Commission 
Representative and Alternate; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; and Personnel Board 8 

F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Banquets 14 

F-3 Approval of Designated Medical Service Facilities 15 

F-4 Final Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-004 (The Monarch Private 
Residences) – North Side of Big Beaver Road, East of Alpine and West of 
McClure, Section 20 15 

F-5 Proposed Consent Judgment – Troy v. Saoud and Nidhal Jamo, Ameriquest 
Mortgage Company and David Ayoub, L.L.C., d/b/a Michigan Community Financial 
Services 16 

F-6 Request for Special Meeting: Chapter 13 Ordinance Amendment to Revise 
Historical District – 3864 Livernois 16 

F-7 Library Café Contract 17 

F-8 Petition to Create the Gibson Intercounty Drain 17 

F-9 Wireless Oakland – Inter-local Agreement and License Agreement 19 

F-10 Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management System Material and Labor 
Maintenance Proposal 19 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 20 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 20 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington – January 9, 2006 ....................... 20 
b) Rezoning Application – Northwest Corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, 

Section 29 – H-S and O-1 to B-3 (Z 711) – January 9, 2006.............................. 20 



c) Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington 
Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) – January 9, 2006 ............................. 20 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 20 

a) Request to Amend Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management ................................. 20 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 20 

H-1  Proposed Resolution To Include 527 Reports On The City Of Troy Web Page 20 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 21 

I-1  No Council Comments 21 

REPORTS: 22 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 22 

a) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005 ............................................... 22 
b) Planning Commission Special/Final – October 25, 2005.................................... 22 
c) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 25, 2005.......................... 22 
d) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 1, 2005 ........................ 22 
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 2, 2005..... 22 
f) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – November 2, 2005..... 22 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 2, 2005............................... 22 
h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 3, 2005 ................... 22 
i) Troy Daze Advisory-Festival Committee/Draft – November 22, 2005 ................ 22 
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – November 30, 2005................................................. 22 
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 1, 2005 ................... 22 
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 7, 2005............................... 22 

J-2 Department Reports: 22 

a) Letter to Oakland County Drain Commissioner John McCulloch from City 
Manager John Szerlag, Regarding Fetterly Drain............................................... 22 

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November 2005..... 22 
c) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2005 ............................. 22 
d) City Manager – Results of Individual Council Interviews Having Budgetary 

Implications......................................................................................................... 22 
e) City Attorney – Macomb County Ethics Committee Policy ................................. 22 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 22 

a) Letter of Appreciation to City Manager John Szerlag from Susan Werpetinski 
Regarding the City Clerk’s Office During the Election ........................................ 22 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 22 



J-5  Calendar 22 

J-6  Letter from MML Workers' Compensation Fund Congratulating Troy on Receiving 
Loss Control Achievement Award 22 

STUDY ITEMS: 22 

K-1 Time Permitting, the City Manager Would Like to Continue the Goals and 
Objectives Presentation 22 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 22 

CLOSED SESSION: 23 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 23 

RECESSED 23 

RECONVENED 23 

ADJOURNMENT 23 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 23 

Monday, January 9, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 23 
Monday, January 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 23 
Monday, February 6, 2006 Regular City Council................................................... 23 
Wednesday, February 15, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 23 
Monday, February 20, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 23 
Wednesday, February 22, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council. 23 
Monday, February 27, 2006 Regular City Council................................................. 23 
Monday, March 6, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 23 
Monday, March 20, 2006 Regular City Council ..................................................... 23 
Monday, March 27, 2006 Regular City Council ..................................................... 23 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Dan Lewis – Troy 
Christian Chapel 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
 
a) Certificates of Appreciation to all City Departments/Divisions from the Mayor and City 

Council In Recognition of Outstanding and Dedicated Service to the Community 
b) Presentation from Representative Robert Gosselin Regarding City of Troy’s Morgan-

Quitno Press “Safest Cities” Rating 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3539 Delaware  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
Proposed Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
        . 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Arun Sekheri, 3539 
Delaware, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a Ford van with bucket lift in a residential district at the property at 3539 
Delaware is hereby APPROVED for      (not to exceed two years). 
 
Or Proposed Resolution B (For Denial) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:  
____________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Arun Sekheri, for waiver of 
Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
Ford van with bucket lift in a residential district at the property at 3539 Delaware is hereby 
DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Request for Special Use Approval for Outdoor Seating in Excess of 20 Seats in 

Conjunction with a Restaurant in O-M Zoning – 911 Wilshire Drive – Kruse and 
Muer Restaurant  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Thomas May representing Kruse and Muer Restaurant, for 
Special Use Approval to install an outdoor dining area for 32 seats at the restaurant at 911 
Wilshire Drive, is hereby APPROVED for a period not to exceed 2 years, in accordance with 
Section 25.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Kruse and Muer Restaurant MAY APPLY for a 2-year 
continuance prior to the expiration of this approval. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of December 5, 2005 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) 2006 Annual Congressional City Conference    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That those Council Members interested are AUTHORIZED to attend the NLC 
2006 Annual Congressional City Conference in Washington, DC on March 11 – 15, 2006 in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase (1) fleet vehicle from Signature Ford, L-M, Jeep is 
hereby APPROVED through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an 
estimated total cost of $23,731.00. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase fleet vehicles from Buff Whelan Chevrolet is hereby 
APPROVED through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at an estimated 
total cost of  $235,475.00. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000.00:  Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) 2005 Membership Dues    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay the 2005 Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG) membership dues from July 15, 2005 to July 15, 2006 in the amount 
of $11,220.00. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Standard and 

Compound Water Meters    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
WHEREAS, On April 12, 2004, a two-year contract with an option to renew for two additional 
years to provide Standard and Compound Water Meters was awarded to low bidder, S.L.C. 
Meter Service, Inc., (Resolution #2004-04-190-E10);  
 
WHEREAS, S.L.C. Meter Service, Inc. has agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew the 
contract under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with S.L.C. Meter Service, Inc., to provide Standard and Compound Water Meters 
under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions for two years expiring December 31, 
2007. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  Grant Approval and Authorization to Expend 

City Funds – Buffer Zone Protection Grant    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby AUTHORIZE the Troy Police Department 
to receive a United States Department of Homeland Security Buffer Zone Protection Grant and 
EXPEND funds for the purchase of equipment in accordance with the attached Appendix – 
Detailed Costs for Authorized Equipment, not to exceed $51,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Police Department budget is hereby AMENDED to 
receive the grant funding of $50,000.00.     
 
E-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from the Angel 

Society, Inc. for the Purpose of Hosting Fundraising Events 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from The Angel Society, Inc., Troy, Michigan - County of 
Oakland, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license be APPROVED as recommended by 
City Management. 
 
E-6 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2006 Application 

Amendment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
WHEREAS, On November 14th, 2005 a Public Hearing was held before the City Council of the 
City of Troy, at which Public Hearing, persons were given an opportunity to provide written and 
oral views to the Troy City Council, the authority responsible for enacting the budget, and to ask 
questions about the entire budget and the relationship of the Home Chore Program, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Administration, and Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, 
Section 6; 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of the Public Hearing on that 
date did determine that funding should be provided through the 2006 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the Home Chore Program; Administration, and Water Sewer 
Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy 
AUTHORIZES the Community Development Block Grant Program Year 2006 application be 
AMENDED to read the Home Chore Program, Administration and Special Assessment Water 
Sewer (Sanitary Sewer benefit use fee) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6.  
 
E-7 Approval of Quit Claim Deed for Part of Vacated Bronx Avenue and Part of Lot 35 

of Lasier Gardens Subdivision from City of Troy to Troy Sports Center Properties, 
L.L.C. and Authorization for Signatures – Sidwell #88-20-23-476-011 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Quit Claim Deed from the City of Troy to Troy Sports Center Properties, 
L.L.C., for part of vacated Bronx Avenue and part of Lot 35 in Lasier Gardens Subdivision 
having Sidwell #88-20-13-100-051, is hereby APPROVED, subject to the retention of an 
easement for public access over the vacated street adjacent to the north 162 feet of Lot 35, as 
well as an easement for public utilities, storm sewer/drainage and sidewalk over the south 10 
feet of the west 25 feet of the vacated street, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the document, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plans 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Deficit Elimination Plan for the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is 
hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Deficit Elimination Plan for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
is hereby APPROVED. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council 
Appointments: Advisory Commission for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals – Planning Commission 
Representative and Alternate; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; and Personnel Board 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval - Council Alternates (2) - Term expires with term of office 
 
 Term expires with term of office 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

 Term expires with term of office 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
John Szerlag, City Manager 06/30/2007 
Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 06/30/2007 
Keith Pretty, President-Walsh College 06/30/2008 
Michael M. Adamczyk, Asst. Supt. Business Services-Troy 
Schools 06/30/2008 
Robin E. Beltramini, Council Member-City of Troy 06/30/2006 
Cristina Broomfield, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
David Eisenbacher, Council Member-City of Troy (Alternate) 11/08/2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME  COUNCIL TERM EXPIRES 
Cristina Broomfield 11/09/09 
Wade Fleming 11/09/09 
Martin Howrylak 11/06/07 
David Lambert 11/06/07 
Jeanne Stine 11/06/07 
Louise Schilling 11/06/07 
 
Planning Commission  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval (9) - 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
 Term Expires 12/31/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Gary G. Chamberlain (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynn Drake-Batts (Alt PC Rep on BZA) 12/31/06 
Fazlullah M. Khan 12/31/06 
Christopher Kulesza (Student) 07/01/06 
Larry Littman 12/31/07 
Robert M. Schultz (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Thomas Strat (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Mark J. Vleck 12/31/07 
David T. Waller 12/31/06 
Wayne C. Wright (PC Rep on BZA) 12/31/07 
 

INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
James K. Campbell 10/31/05-11/2007 11/14/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Ramzi M. Dalloo 12/09/05-12/2007 12/19/05 
Kul B. Gauri 07/03/03-07/13/05-07/2007 07/21/03-10/17/05 
Patrick C. Hall 01/26/01-03/10/03-03/2005 02/05/01-03/17/03 
Dan Kaiser 10/18/04-10/2006 11/08/04 
Laurence G. Keisling 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Chris Komasara 11/14/05-11/2007 11/21/05 
Rosemar Kornacki 07/18/05-07/2007 07/18/05 
David Lakin 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Carmelo Milia 06/14/01-06/04/03-10/03/05-09/2007 07/09/01-06/16/03 

David Ogg 
02/09/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-
01/19/05-01/2007 04/23/01-06/16/03 

Joseph M. Polito, Jr. 10/28/05-10/2007 11/14/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree Shah 01/12/03-04/23/04-04/2006 02/02/04-05/03/04 
Frank Shier 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Beatrice G. Smits 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Lon M. Ullmann 03/19/01-03/10/03-03/2005 04/09/01 
Brian J. Wattles 07/10-01-07/2003 07/23/01 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cynthia Buchanan 11/01/07 
Susan Burt 11/01/06 
Angela J. Done 11/01/08 
Adam Fuhrman (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Peggy Hammond 11/01/08 
Theodora House 11/01/06 
Nancy Johnson (Alternate) - Resigned 11/01/06 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Pauline Manetta 11/01/06 
Dorothy Ann   Pietron 11/01/07 
Mark Pritzlaff (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Jeffrey Stewart 11/01/08 
Susan Werpetinski 11/01/07 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E.  Freliga 09/21/05-09/2007 10/03/05 
O. Carlene Geier 08/10/05-08/2007 08/15/05 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/06 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
James Berar 04/30/07 
Burdette L. Black, Jr. (Bud) 04/30/07 
Merrill W. Dixon (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Marie Hoag (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Pauline Y. Noce 04/30/07 
David S. Ogg 04/30/08 
Josephine Rhoads 04/30/08 
JoAnn Thompson 04/30/06 
William Weisgerber (Does not request reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Mary E. Freliga 11/25/02-09/21/05-09/2004 12/02/02 
Kul B. Gauri 07/31/05-07/2007  

Dorothy A. Pietron 
12/21/98-07/10/01-09/21/05-
09/2007 07/23/01 

Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

Shiva Shakara K. Sastry 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Donald E. Schafer 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Remedios Solarte 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Nancy Wheeler 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals-Planning Commission Representative & Alternate 
Appointed by Planning Commission   (1 Representative & 1 Alternate) – 1 Year Term 
Confirmed by City Council 
  
NOTE: City Management requests that City Council defer the confirmation of the Planning 
Commission representative and alternate to the Board of Zoning Appeals so that the term 
expirations can be adjusted to fall after Planning Commission expiration dates. The Planning 
Commission’s current by-laws stipulate that these appointments be made at their first meeting in 
January so that they can consider all Planning Commission members. 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Kenneth L. Courtney 04/30/07 
Christopher Fejes 04/30/06 
Marcia Gies 04/30/07 
Michael W. Hutson 04/30/06 
Matthew R. Kovacs 04/30/08 
Mark Maxwell 04/30/08 
Wayne C. Wright PC Rep (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynne Drake-Batts  PC Alt Rep (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
NAME PC TERM EXPIRES 
Gary G. Chamberlain (Does not request reappointment) 12/31/05 
Lynn Drake-Batts (Alt PC Rep on BZA-Does not request reappointment) 12/31/06 
Fazlullah M. Khan 12/31/06 
Christopher Kulesza (Student) 07/01/06 
Larry Littman 12/31/07 
Robert M. Schultz (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Thomas Strat (Requests reappointment) 12/31/05 
Mark J. Vleck 12/31/07 
David T. Waller 12/31/06 
Wayne C. Wright (PC Rep on BZA-Requests reappointment) 12/31/07 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 & 2 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 09/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Anju Brodbine 09/30/08 
Reuben Ellis 09/30/07 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Kelly Gu (Student) 09/30/06 
LuLu Guo (Student) 09/30/06 
Michelle Haight 09/30/07 
Amini Hashmi (Not a registered voter; to submit letter of resignation) 09/30/08 
Tom Kaszubski 09/30/07 
Padma Kuppa 09/30/08 
Mark Pritzlaff 09/30/07 
Malina (Melanie) Sarma 09/30/07 
Oniell Shah 09/30/08 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Margaret Apte 01/19/05-01/2007 01/24/05 
Kathleen Ann Connor 02/25/04-02/2006 03/0104 
Angela Done 08/10/05-08/2007 10/17/05 
Yogesh Gusani 08/1705-08/2007 09/12/05 
Kelly Jones 08/17/05-08/2007 09/12/05 
Awni Y. Fakhoury 10/14/05-10/2007 10/24/05 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03 
Jayshree (Gita) Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Remedios A. Solarte 08/15/05-08/2007 09/20/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Historic District Commission  One member must be an architect 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  One member-Historical Society recommendations  
  One member – Historical Comm. recommendation 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/08 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Sabah Jihad 03/01/08 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/08 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
(Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on file.   
 
Personnel Board  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 04/30/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Deborah L. Baughman 04/30/08 
Albert T. Nelson, Jr. 04/30/06 
Stephen Patrick, Jr. (Resigned) 04/30/06 
Ronald L. Tschirhart 04/30/08 
James E. Vanderbrink 04/30/06 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Patrick C. Hall 06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Laurie G. Huber 06/18/01-09/21/05-09/2007 07/09/01-10/03/05 
Mark Pritzlaff 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Jayshree Shah 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Renee Uitto 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – Annual Banquets 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That _____________________ WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies and Official 
Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for the Annual 2006 Boards 
& Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 11, 2006); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That ________________________ WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for 
the Annual 2006 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 20, 2006). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

F-3 Approval of Designated Medical Service Facilities 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the following medical facilities are DESIGNATED to provide 
professional services to City of Troy personnel: 
 
Concentra Medical Center Pre-employment physicals (excluding Police Officer), work 

related injuries, back-up testing, workers’ compensation 
cases, new firefighter’s physicals, return to work physicals, 
drug and alcohol testing and other work related medical 
services 

 
Crittenton Hospital Police Officer Pre-employment Physicals, and TPOA Bi-

annual Fitness Testing 
 
Bio-Care Haz-Mat Physicals, Medical Evaluations Fire Physicals, and 

Biological Monitoring Screening 
 
Staff will review pricing annually and adjustments may be allowed not-to-exceed the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) for the Detroit-Ann Arbor area.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-4 Final Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-004 (The Monarch Private 
Residences) – North Side of Big Beaver Road, East of Alpine and West of McClure, 
Section 20 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Final Plan and Development Agreement for a Planned Unit 
Development, pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and 35.80.00, as requested by Big Beaver Office 
LLC, for The Monarch Private Residences Planned Unit Development, located on the north side 
of Big Beaver, east of Alpine and west of McClure, located in Section 20, within the O-1, P-1 
and R-1B zoning districts, being 5.85 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED and shall be known 
as PUD-004;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Final Plan is described in The Monarch Private 
Residences Final Planned Unit Development Application, dated September 16, 2005, including 
revised information provided by the applicant following September 16, 2005; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the subject property is described in the attached Legal 
Description and illustrated on the attached Boundary Survey drawing; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Zoning District Map of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance be AMENDED to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Development Agreement for The Monarch Private Residences Planned Unit 
Development; a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That The Monarch Private Residences Planned Unit 
Development Agreement be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the applicant shall SEEK and RECEIVE all required permits, 
licenses or approvals, including but not limited to, Federal, State of Michigan, Oakland County 
and City of Troy agencies or departments, in accordance with all applicable laws. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Proposed Consent Judgment – Troy v. Saoud and Nidhal Jamo, Ameriquest 

Mortgage Company and David Ayoub, L.L.C., d/b/a Michigan Community Financial 
Services 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Consent Judgment in the matter of City of Troy, a Municipal Corporation 
v. Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 04-062810-
CC) is hereby APPROVED and a copy of the Consent Judgment shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Assistant City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to sign the 
Consent Judgment and enter it with the court. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

F-6 Request for Special Meeting: Chapter 13 Ordinance Amendment to Revise 
Historical District – 3864 Livernois 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

 
RESOLVED, That a Special Meeting is hereby SCHEDULED for the purpose of amending 
Chapter 13, Sections 2, 3 4 and 7, of the City Code of Ordinances, to modify the Historic District 
– 3864 Livernois on Thursday, December 22, 2005 at 7:30 PM in the Council Board Room. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

F-7 Library Café Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
Suggested Resolution A (For Approval) 
 
RESOLVED, That a two-year contract for the operation of the Library café by Zeyn Francis of 
Troy, Michigan is hereby AWARDED at a first year monthly rent of $500.00 and a second year 
monthly rent of $750.00 expiring December 31, 2007; the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract may be extended for any number of two-year 
periods under the same terms and conditions, if approved by City Council and agreed to by the 
Café operators; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the café operator 
submission of proper contract documents, including the letter of irrevocable credit in favor of the 
City of Troy, and insurance certificates and all other specified requirements; and  
   
Or Suggested Resolution B (For Termination) 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement for Termination of Agreement for the Library Café, by and 
between Sandi Melki and Scott Jackson and the City of Troy is hereby APPROVED; the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

F-8 Petition to Create the Gibson Intercounty Drain 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

WHEREAS, There is an established County Drain within the City of Sterling Heights, County of 
Macomb, known as the Gibson Drain, which is under the jurisdiction of the Macomb County 
Public Works Commissioners;  
 
WHEREAS, Previously, a portion of the Gibson Drain was re-established as a public drain, and 
was widened, deepened and relocated, along with two lakes being created, pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 20 of the Michigan Drain Code of 1956, as amended (MCL 280.461-499;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Sterling Heights in Macomb County and the City of Troy in Oakland 
County have caused a new drainage system to be constructed to serve a contiguous drainage 
area within their respective communities, such system generally consisting of drain tiles 
installed along the 18 Mile Road/Long Lake Road and Dequindre Road Rights-of-Way, with 
such tiles diverting stormwater runoff into the Gibson Drain;  
 
WHEREAS, Conditions with these public and private drains in and through the Cities of Sterling 
Heights and Troy have created the need for long-term, comprehensive system for maintenance 
of all of the above-mentioned drains and drainage facilities;   
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 21 of the Michigan Drain Code of 1956 authorizes two or more public 
corporations to petition the Michigan Department of Agriculture to locate, establish and 
construct an intercounty drain necessary for the public health of the public corporations where 
the cost thereof is to be assessed wholly against the public corporations;  
 
WHEREAS, The public corporations that may be subject to assessments for future costs for this 
intercounty drain are as follows: the City of Sterling Heights, the City of Troy, the City of 
Rochester Hills, Macomb County, Oakland County and the Michigan Department of 
Transportation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy FINDS that the location, 
establishment and maintenance of an intercounty drain pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Michigan 
Drain Code is necessary for the public health and further that such drain is necessary for the 
management of storm water in the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City shall FILE with the Michigan Department of 
Agriculture its Petition for a drain to be located in and through the City of Sterling Heights and 
the City of Troy, which route is described in the attachment to this Resolution; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City shall request the new drain be NAMED the Gibson 
Intercounty Drain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That following the proceedings authorized by Chapter 21 of the 
Michigan Drain Code, the City will petition to LOCATE, ESTABLISH and CONSTRUCT the 
drain in conjunction with the other public corporation(s) authorized by law to so petition; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and the City Clerk are AUTHORIZED and 
DIRECTED TO EXECUTE all documents and petitions necessary to carry out the intent of this 
Resolution. 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

No: 

F-9 Wireless Oakland – Inter-local Agreement and License Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution A  
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Wireless Oakland Agreement Between Oakland County and City of Troy 
is hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
document, and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No:  
 
And Suggested Resolution B  
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director, be APPOINTED as the 
City of Troy’s representative to the Wireless Oakland Advisory Board; and Doug Smith, Real 
Estate and Development Director, be APPOINTED as alternative. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
And Suggested Resolution C  
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy will WAIVE any permit, construction, or inspection fees that 
are associated with the implementation of Wireless Oakland in the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

F-10 Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management System Material and Labor 
Maintenance Proposal 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

WHEREAS, SimplexGrinnel is an authorized, licensed installer in Michigan of the Andover 
Controls security system;  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to perform periodic maintenance and installation of new or 
replacement equipment and avoid corruption of the system’s programming.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the City of Troy is AUTHORIZED to enter into contract with SimplexGrinnel of Farmington 
Hills, MI, for labor and materials to maintain the Integrated Security Management System from 
11/1/05 through 10/30/06, subject to annual price increases thereafter, not to exceed 3% as 
determined by the CPI for the Detroit Ann Arbor area, in accordance with their proposal, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abington – January 9, 2006  
b) Rezoning Application – Northwest Corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, Section 29 – 

H-S and O-1 to B-3 (Z 711) – January 9, 2006 
c) Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Road, 

Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-C) – January 9, 2006    
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: 
a) Request to Amend Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management   
   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  Proposed Resolution To Include 527 Reports On The City Of Troy Web Page 
 
Mayor Schilling Wishes to Have Council Consider the Following Resolution: 
 
Resolution #2005-12- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has recently discussed the need for more ethical behavior 
from members of the City Council;.   
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan currently posts on their web site the Candidate Committee 
Campaign Finance Reports for all candidates that run for State office;. 
 
WHEREAS, The Election Campaign Finance Act requires campaign statements to be available 
for viewing by the public at the Oakland County Clerk’s Office;. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

WHEREAS, 527 Reports are available on the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) web page; and 
 
WHEREAS, This Council wishes to maintain an open and honest relationship with all residents 
and businesses in Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Candidates, candidate committees, independent 
committees and Political Action Committees are requested to disclose to the City Clerk the 
existence of a 527 or similar entity which expends or raises money for the purpose of a local 
City of Troy City Council or Mayor candidate or City of Troy local ballot issue. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk SHALL obtain copies of Campaign Finance 
Reports for all candidate disclosed committees, independent committees, and Political Action 
Committees required to file Campaign Finance statements with the Oakland County Clerk’s 
office and disclosed organizations required to file 527 forms with the IRS that are trying to 
influence the outcome of a Troy City Election and that the City Clerk POST the Campaign 
Finance reports and 527 forms on the City’s web site.; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy WILL POST on its web site, the Campaign 
Finance Reports and IRS 527 forms from ALL committees; candidate committees, independent 
committees, and Political Action Committees (PACs) who have spent money fostering a 
candidacy for local office and/or ballot question on the City of Troy ballot for a time no less than 
6 (six) years.; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That pre- and post-election statements be UPDATED seven (7) 
days after the initial filing and all statements, until links can be made by the City Clerk on the 
last business day of the month as necessary.; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That when the County of Oakland electronically posts candidate 
campaign committee finance forms on its web site, that the City of Troy PROVIDE a link to the 
Oakland County Clerk’s Campaign Finance Reporting section of the Oakland County Web 
Page and a link to the IRS 527 Report section on the on the IRS Web Page to that location from 
its web site and PROVIDE for a link to the Secretary of State’s Campaign Report section on the 
State’s web site. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Library Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005 
b) Planning Commission Special/Final – October 25, 2005  
c) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 25, 2005 
d) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 1, 2005  
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 2, 2005  
f) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – November 2, 2005  
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 2, 2005 
h) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 3, 2005 
i) Troy Daze Advisory-Festival Committee/Draft – November 22, 2005  
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – November 30, 2005 
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 1, 2005  
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 7, 2005 
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Letter to Oakland County Drain Commissioner John McCulloch from City Manager John 

Szerlag, Regarding Fetterly Drain  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of November 2005  
c) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2005  
d) City Manager – Results of Individual Council Interviews Having Budgetary Implications 
e) City Attorney – Macomb County Ethics Committee Policy  
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to City Manager John Szerlag from Susan Werpetinski Regarding 

the City Clerk’s Office During the Election 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Letter from MML Workers' Compensation Fund Congratulating Troy on Receiving 

Loss Control Achievement Award 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Time Permitting, the City Manager Would Like to Continue the Goals and 

Objectives Presentation 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  December 19, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, January 9, 2006.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, January 23, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 6, 2006 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 15, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing)....... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 20, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 22, 2006 (Liquor Violation Hearing)....... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 27, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 6, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 20, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 27, 2006........................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 



 
 
DATE:   November 29, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   3539 Delaware 
 
 
 
 
On November 16, 2005, Mr. Arun Sekheri inquired at the Building Department whether 
a certain commercial vehicle would be allowed to be parked outdoors on residential 
property.  He was informed that the vehicle in question, a Ford van with a bucket lift 
attached to it, did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.   
 
In response to our decision, Mr. Sekheri has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that 
a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of December 19, 2005. 
 
The existing dwelling on the property has a total living area of 2,178 square feet.  Based 
upon the provisions of Section 40.56.01, attached garages up to 1,633 square feet 
could be constructed.  An attached garage, 440 square foot in area, already exists on 
the property.  The lot in question is 90’ wide and 150 feet deep.  Based upon the 
requirements of Section 40.56.02 a detached accessory building of 720 square feet 
could be constructed.  
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 



 





 



 



 



 



 



 
 
DATE:   November 30, 2005 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item –Public Hearing 

Request for Special Use Approval for  
Outdoor Seating in excess of 20 seats 
in Conjunction with a Restaurant in O-M Zoning 
911 Wilshire Drive – Kruse and Muer Restaurant 

 
 
 

We have received a request from Thomas May, representing Kruse and Muer 
Restaurant, to install an outdoor dining area for 32 seats at their restaurant opening at 
911 Wishire Drive.  The seating is proposed to be located in an area on the north side of 
the building that will be enclosed by landscape screening and fencing elements.   
 
This location was the site of the former T.G.I.Friday’s restaurant that also had outside 
seating in this area.  That dining area was approved based upon a 1982 Board of 
Zoning Appeals interpretation that outdoor dining was considered a “normal accessory 
use” to a restaurant.  Since that time the ordinance has been revised to establish 
specific review and approval procedures for outdoor dining. 
 
Section 25.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance establishes outdoor seating areas in excess 
of 20 seats for restaurants to be a Use Subject to Special Use Approval in the O-M 
(Mid-Rise Office) Zoning District.  This Section further states that City Council (in place 
of the Planning Commission) shall hold a Public Hearing in consideration of the request. 
 
The restaurant is proposed to have a seating capacity for 173 persons inside.  With the 
addition of 32 seats outside their total seating capacity will be 205.  Section 40.21.31 
requires a minimum of 123 parking spaces for a restaurant with 205 seats.  The site has 
a minimum of 124 parking spaces available for the restaurant use as part of the overall 
office development. 
 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of December 19, 2005. 
 
We will be happy to provide any additional information that you may require regarding 
this request. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 



 



 



 

 



 



 



 



 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, December 5, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM 
 
Mr. David Carnes – Troy Church of Christ gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  a) Presentation from the National League of Cities (NLC) by Vicki 
Barnett, Board Member of the NLC and Current Mayor of the City of Farmington 
Hills, recognizing the City of Troy’s 30 Years of Membership and Dedicated 
Service in Shaping and Advocating National Municipal Policy and Helping to 
Strengthen Communities of All Sizes; b) President of MGFOA, Michael D. 
O’Connell, Finance Director-Wayne County-Management & Budget/Children & 
Family Services Presented Three GFOA Awards to John M. Lamerato, Assistant 
City Manager/Finance & Administration, on Behalf of the City of Troy in 
Recognition of Its Budget, The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Award 
and The Popular Annual Financial Report Award; C) 2005 Audited Financial Report 
Presented by Tom Darling, CPA – Rehmann Robson and John M. Lamerato 
presented the City of Troy’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year 
Ending June 30, 2005 

 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:34 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:41 PM. 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-12-537 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-2, E-5 and E-6, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contract Award – Regional 

Educational Media Center Association of Michigan (REMC) – Contract for LCD 
Projectors   

 
Resolution #2005-12-537-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract for the purchase and installation of LCD projectors from Data Image 
Systems is hereby APPROVED through the Regional Educational Media Center Association of Michigan 
(REMC) contract MI-REMC at an estimated cost of $21,000.00. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-12-538 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming   
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of November 28, 2005 be 
APPROVED as corrected as laid on the table and by striking the arrival time of Council Member 
Howrylak. 
 
Yes:  All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Agenda 
 
Resolution #2005-12-539 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That the Agenda be AMENDED by moving forward Agenda Item E-6 BEFORE item 
Agenda Item E-5.  
 
Yes:  All-7  
 
E-6 Application for Transfer of Class C License – D.I. Supply, Inc.  
 
(a) New License
 
Resolution #2005-12-540-E-6a 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from D.I. Supply, Inc., (a Missouri Corporation) to transfer 
ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit 
(food), located in escrow at 585 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from 
O’Grady’s Irish Pub, Inc. “above all others”; be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) Agreement
 
Resolution #2005-12-540-E-6b 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with D.I. Supply, Inc., (a Missouri Corporation) to transfer ownership 
of a 2005 Class C licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food), 
located in escrow at 585 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from O’Grady’s Irish 
Pub, Inc., “above all others”; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-5 Application for Transfer of Class C License – Kruse and Muer  
 
(a) New License
 
Resolution #2005-12-540-E-5a 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That the request from Kruse and Muer Troy, LLC to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food), located in 
escrow at 585 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from D. I. Supply, Inc., (a 
Missouri Corporation) and transfer location to 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County,  
and add a new Dance Permit, new Outdoor Service Permit, and new SDM License. (Step 2), 
“above all others”; be considered for approval.  
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-12-540-E-5b 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Kruse and Muer Troy, LLC to transfer ownership of a 2005 
Class C licensed business with Entertainment Permit and Official Permit (food), located in 
escrow at 585 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, from D. I. Supply, Inc., (a 
Missouri Corporation) and transfer location to 911 Wilshire, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, 
and add a new Dance Permit,  new Outdoor Service Permit, and new SDM License.  (Step 2), 
“above all others”; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments b) City Council Appointments: Historic District Commission; Liquor 
Committee; and Troy Daze Advisory Committee 

 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Resolution #2005-12-541 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Historic District Commission  One member must be an architect 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  One member-Historical Society recommendations  
  One member – Historical Comm. recommendation 
 
Sabah Jihad  Term expires 03/01/08 
 
Liquor Committee 
Appointed by Council - (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Kelsey Brunette Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Troy Daze Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
William F. Hall Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
Kessie Kaltsounis Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
Robert S. Preston Term Expires 11/30/08 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Proposed Amendments for Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation – Removed at the 

Request of City Management 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3539 Delaware – December 19, 2005  
b) Request for Outdoor Seating in Excess of 20 Seats in Conjunction with a Restaurant in 

O-M Zoning – 911 Wilshire Drive – Kruse and Muer Restaurant – December 19, 2005   
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

H-1  Council Member Cristina Broomfield Requests Discussion Regarding Certificates 
of Appreciation for City Employees  

 
There was a consensus of City Council directing City Staff to place Certificates of Appreciation 
recognizing city employees and departments on the agenda for the City Council meeting 
scheduled for Monday, December 19, 2005 
. 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – May 9, 2005  
b) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – July 11, 2005 
c) Historic District Study Committee/Final – September 6, 2005 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 12, 2005  
e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – October 3, 2005 
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 4, 2005 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 18, 2005 
h) Historic District Commission/Final – October 18, 2005  
i) Troy Daze Advisory-Festival Committee/Final – October 25, 2005 
j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 2, 2005  
k) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – November 7, 2005 
l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 14, 2005  
m) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 15, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Planning Department – Rezoning Application – South Side of Woodslee Street, East of 

Rochester Road, Section 27 – M-1 to R-2 (Z 709)  
b) Community Affairs Department – Closed Captioning for Cable Channel  
c) Planning Department – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA-201) – Article 

28.30.00 Commercial Indoor Recreation in the M-1 Light Industrial Zoning District   
d) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2005  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Jeffrey Werner, Bloomfield Township Chief of Police, 

In Appreciation of the Efforts of Sgt. Redmond, Officer Villerot and the Troy Police 
Department 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Michael Bouchard, Oakland County Sheriff, 
Regarding Participation in the 3rd Annual National Family Violence Apprehension Detail 

c) Letter of Thanks to Sgt. Redmond from W. Burton McCandless, In Appreciation of His 
Professionalism and Assistance 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  December 5, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:   
 
Resolution #2005-12-542 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session after the 
Study Meeting in the Council Boardroom, as permitted by MCLA 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation 
– Sunset Excavating, Inc. v. MDOT (as Agent for the City of Troy.) 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:31 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:39 PM in the Council Boardroom. 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Presentation of 2006-2008 Goals and Objectives, and Results of City Manager’s 

Interviews with Individual Council Members 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:20 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 



December 12, 2005 
 
 
 
 

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Admin. Assistant to City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 10  

Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds  
for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses - 
National League of Cities (NLC) 2006 Annual 
Congressional City Conference 

 
 
 
Authorization is requested for those Council members interested to attend the NLC 
2006 Annual Congressional City Conference in Washington, DC on March 11-15, 
2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr 
 
AGENDA ITEMS\2005\12.19.05 – Stand Res #10 – NLC 2006 Annual Congressional City Conference 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a















 1

December 13, 2005 
 
 

 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Macomb County 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement — Fleet Vehicles 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends approval and authorization to purchase one (1) fleet 
vehicle through a Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an 
estimated total cost of $23,731.00.   
 
The equipment will replace a vehicle due to come out of service from the Fire 
Department. 
 
 ITEM BUDGET UNIT COST TOTAL 
     
SIGNATURE FORD, L-M, JEEP      
1   Ford Explorer XLT 4X4  (Fire) A-5   $28,000.00 $23,731.00   $23,731.00 
     

TOTAL  $28,000.00  $23,731.00 
     
 
Hybrid vehicles are currently being evaluated for future city vehicle purchases and 
budget considerations. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this recommendation, please feel free to call me 
at your convenience. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Vehicle Motor Pool Capital Account 565.7981. 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 
 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 121905 SR4 AwardVehicles-Macomb.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



 1

December 13, 2005 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends approval and authorization to purchase thirteen (13) 
fleet vehicles through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at an 
estimated total cost of $235,475.00.   
 
The equipment will replace vehicles due to come out of service from the Police, 
Parks, Engineering, and Public Works Departments. 
 
 ITEM BUDGET UNIT COST TOTAL 
     
BUFF WHELAN CHEVROLET     
3    Chevrolet 4X4 Pick-Up 4 Door * A-4 $76,500.00 $22,550.75 $67,652.25 
2    Chevrolet 4X4 Cab & Chassis  ** A-7 $60,000.00 $18,754.97 $37,509.94 
6    Chevrolet 4X2 Pick-Up Ext. Cab A-10   $96,000.00 $15,837.81 $95,026.86 
2    Chevrolet 4X4 Pick-Up *** A-11 $46,000.00 $17,642.36  $35,284.72 

 
TOTAL  $278,500.00  $235,473.77 

 
*     Police Service Aide. 
**   Dump bodies and plows will be ordered at a later date to coincide with truck delivery. 
*** Plows will be ordered at a later date. 

 
Hybrid vehicles are currently being evaluated for future city vehicle purchases and 
budget considerations. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this recommendation, please feel free to call me 
at your convenience. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Vehicle Motor Pool Capital Account 565.7981. 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 
 
 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 121905 SR4 AwardVehicles-Oakland.doc 
  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



December 12, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Admin. 
  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds   
  for Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: 

Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
 2005 Membership Dues 

 
 
 
Attached is an invoice from SEMCOG in the amount of $11,220.00 for the City’s 2005 
membership dues.  Funds are available for this membership in City Council’s 
Membership & Dues account number 102.7958. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS\2005\12.19.05  – Stand Purch Res 9 - 2005 SEMCOG Dues 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d





December 2, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option –Standard and Compound Water Meters 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On April 12, 2004, City Council approved a two-year contract to provide standard and compound 
water meters with an option to renew for two additional years to the low bidder, SLC Meter 
Service Inc. of Davisburg, MI (Council Resolution #2004-04-190-E10).  Staff recommends the 
City exercise the option to renew for two additional years under the same prices, terms and 
conditions, expiring December 31, 2007. 
 
PROPOSAL I:  STANDARD METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
300  5/8” x ¾” Meter  T-10 ARB-V    (2.25)  $  80.21 
600  ¾” Meter  T-10 ARB-V       (3.25)   $104.82 
  20  1” Meter  T-10 ARB-V     (4.25)  $136.23 
   5  1-1/2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V  (10.00)  $295.82 
   5  2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V   (14.00)  $319.96 
  Additional Cable per Unit, per Foot    $      .08 

 Discount on Parts           10% 
 
PROPOSAL II:  COMPOUND METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
12  2” Compound   Tru-Flo     (30.00)  $1,019.04 
15  3” Compound  Tru-Flo     (40.00)  $1,275.46 
12  4” Compound  Tru-Flo     (50.00)  $1,906.46 
  2  6” Compound  Tru-Flo   (100.00) $2,992.08 
  Discount on Parts           10% 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
A market survey was not deemed necessary, as the City has standardized on the Neptune Water 
Meter System and SLC Meter Service is the authorized distributor for the State of Michigan.  In 
addition, on November 14, 2005, City Council approved to expand the meter read process to the 
remaining 26,000 residential meters with the Neptune Automatic Meter Read System and 
ongoing equipment installations as needed for ten (10) years.  The radio read equipment 
connects directly to the water meter and works in unison to meter water usage. Transition to the 
AMR system was determined to be seamless because of its adaptability to the Neptune and 
Schlumberger water meters and the most economical to implement. It utilizes the city’s current 3-
wire system, accommodates a mixed environment of manual and radio read, and interfaces to the 
Hansen Water Billing System without any additional costs or software bridges.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Water Department Operating Budget.  
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide        
               

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e









March 24, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1- Award To Low 

Bidder – Standard And Compound Water Meters 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 28, 2004, bid proposals were opened to furnish two-year 
requirements of Standard and Compound Water Meters with an option to renew 
for two additional years.  After reviewing these proposals, City management 
recommends awarding the contract to the low bidder, SLC Meter Service Inc. of 
Davisburg, MI, at an estimated cost of $148,390.00 per year at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation.  The City has been very satisfied with 
their product and service over the years.  Water meters are purchased on an as 
needed basis throughout the year. 
 
SUMMARY 
PROPOSAL I:  STANDARD METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
300  5/8” x ¾” Meter T-10 ARB-V       (2.25)  $  80.21 
600  ¾” Meter  T-10 ARB-V       (3.25)  $104.82 
  20  1” Meter  T-10 ARB-V     (4.25)  $136.23 
   5  1-1/2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V  (10.00)  $295.82 
   5  2” Meter  T-10 ARB-V   (14.00)  $319.96 
  Additional Cable per Unit, per Foot    $      .08 

 Discount on Parts           10% 
 
PROPOSAL II:  COMPOUND METERS 
Est. Qty Description  Model #  Trade-in Unit Price 
        Allowance 
12  2” Compound  Tru-Flo    (30.00) $1,019.04 
15  3” Compound Tru-Flo    (40.00) $1,275.46 
12  4” Compound Tru-Flo    (50.00) $1,906.46 
  2  6” Compound Tru-Flo  (100.00) $2,992.08 
  Discount on Parts           10% 
 

1 of 2 
 
 



March 24, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award - Standard and Compound Meters 
 
  
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
National Waterworks, Inc. withdrew their bid because AMCO, the meter 
manufacturer, was unable to modify their current reading system to comply with 
the City’s 6-digit billing software constraint. (See Attachment I) 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Water Department Operating Budget, as monies clear 
through the balance sheet Inventory Account for Meters. 
 
 
 
32 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  1 Vendor Walk-In 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  1 Bid Withdrawn 
  3 No Bids: (2) Companies do not handle the type of product specified. 
  (1) Company cannot meet specifications nor provide an approved alternate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date:  1-28-04 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 03-47
Date Prepared: 3/24/04 STANDARD AND COMPOUND METERS Pg 1 of 2

VENDOR NAME:

EST TRADE UNIT TRADE UNIT
ITEM # QTY DESCRIPTION MODEL # IN PRICE MODEL # IN PRICE
PROPOSAL I:  STANDARD METERS

1. 300 5/8" X 3/4" Meter T-10 ARB V (2.25)$           80.21$         C-700 (2.00)$         68.55$         
 

2. 600 3/4" Meter T-10 ARB V (3.25)$           104.82$       C-700 (2.00)$         77.44$         
 

3. 20 1" Meter T-10 ARB V (4.25)$           136.23$       C-700 (3.00)$         111.89$       

4. 5 1 1/2" Meter w/connection T-10 ARB V (10.00)$         295.82$       C-700 (4.00)$         245.10$       
 

5. 5 2" Meter w/connection T-10 ARB V (14.00)$         319.96$       C-700 (4.00)$         280.67$       
Meters manufactured by: NEPTUNE AMCO, INC Formerly ABB

6. Additional cable, per unit, per foot 0.08$           0.17$           

7.a. Discount on parts 10% 10%
7.b. Parts Listed to be used - dated: JAN "04" 1/26/04

Attached & Marked as: U676-9 "A"

PROPOSAL II:  COMPOUND METERS TRADE UNIT TRADE UNIT
MODEL # IN PRICE MODEL # IN PRICE

1. 12 2" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (30.00)$         1,019.04$     C-3000 (8.00)$         1,053.00$    
 

2. 15 3" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (40.00)$         1,275.46$     C-3000 (10.00)$       1,338.00$    

3. 12 4" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (50.00)$         1,906.46$     C-3000 (12.00)$       2,182.00$    
 

4. 2 6" Compound w/connections TRU-FLO (100.00)$       2,992.08$     C-3000 (16.00)$       4,215.00$    
Meters manufactured by: NEPTUNE AMCO, INC Formerly ABB

5.a. Discount on parts 10% 10%
5.b. Parts Listed to be used - dated: Jan-2004 1/26/04

Attached & Marked as: U676-9 A-1

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL PER YEAR: *  148,390.56$ WITHDREW

CONTACT INFORMATION: HRS 8-5pm Mon-Fri 7am-5pm
PHONE # (248)670-6283 (866)833-0067

TERMS NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS

DELIVERY DATE AS REQUIRED 3-4 WEEKS

WARRANTY STANDARD MFG 10 YEARS

EXCEPTIONS BLANK NONE
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT - SIGN:

Y or N YES YES

NATIONAL WATERWORKS INC
- WITHDREW BID -

*  SLC METER SERVICE INC



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date:  1-28-04 BID TABULATION ITB-COT 03-47
Date Prepared: 3/24/04 STANDARD AND COMPOUND METERS Pg 2 of 2

PROPOSAL-- Two-Year Requirements of Standard and Compound Water Meters with an Option to Renew for
Two Additional Years

* DENOTES LOW BIDDER

NO BIDS:
  Etna Supply Company
  Core Electric Mich Pump
  Underground Pipe-AMR Division

ATTEST:
  Emily Frontera
  MaryAnn Hays
  Jeanette Bennett _____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 03-47 Water Meters











  December 1, 2005  
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Charles Craft, Police Chief  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item– Standard Purchasing Resolution 6: Grant Approval 

And Authorization to Expend City Funds – Buffer Zone Protection 
Grant  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends that Troy City Council approve the use of funds 
received from the U. S. Department of Homeland Security, Buffer Zone 
Protection Plan Grant, and authorize the purchase of equipment that has been 
approved by the Department of Homeland Security, in accordance with the 
attached Appendix – Detailed Costs for Authorized Equipment.  The amount of 
the grant is $50,000.00, with expenditures not to exceed $51,000.00.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Since 2003, The City of Troy Police Department has been working with the 
Michigan State Police Department of Homeland Security Division and the U.S 
Department of Homeland Security on identifying critical infrastructure sites in the 
City of Troy, County of Oakland and State of Michigan. Vulnerability studies have 
been conducted on many of these, and the State of Michigan has ranked these 
CIP sites by vulnerability for the entire state. Starting in 2004, U.S Department of 
Homeland Security rolled out a Critical Infrastructure Buffer Zone Protection 
Equipment Grant to help those first responding agencies better equipped in case 
of a terrorist incident. The equipment specified will enhance our response to 
these facilities. The U.S Department of Homeland Security had to give their 
approval of the equipment prior to the awarding of the grant.  This grant is a 
reimbursement grant, whereas, the City of Troy must expend the funds to get 
reimbursement.   
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds for this equipment are available through the Police Department Capital 
Fund, Account # 401315.7978.010. The resolution amends the Police 
Departments budget to receive the grant funding and allows it to be expended on 
the designated items.    
 
 
Prepared by:  Sgt Donald Ostrowski 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04f



APPENDIX –  
DETAILED COSTS FOR AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT 

 
Item Description Vendor  Cost/Item Qty Shipping Estimated 

Total 
1. ITT Night Vision with 

helmet and weapon 
mounting adapters  

Mavavision 
Technologies 
 

$3,185.32 9 -0- $28,667.88

2. Cases for Night Visions  Pelican  44.07 9 90.00 486.63
3. Equipment Trailer  Ajax Trailer  6,090.00 1 -0- 6,090.00
4. Spy Stik model SS-3640 OSSI Industries  364.00 1 11.50 375.50
5. Metro Tactical Bang 

Pole  
Diamondback 
Tactical 

354.95 1 48.00 402.95

6. Tactical Gas Mask Bags  Fire Safe  19.99 140 15.00 2,813.60
7. Ballistic Blankets  Armour Shield  $4814.25 2 $235.00 9,863.50
8. Night Vision Binoculars  Night Vision Web  601.56 1 20.00 621.56
9. Digital Binoculars  Digital Orange  303.56 1 20.00 323.56
10. Hand Held Metal 

Detectors  
Garrett Security  114.69 3 20.00 355.07

 $50,009.25
 
 
 



   Memorandum 
 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

Date: December 12, 2005 
 

Subject: Agenda Item: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status 
from The Angel Society, Inc.  for the Purpose of  Hosting Fundraising Events 

 
Attached is a request from Janice C. Zikakis – President, The Angel Society, Inc. seeking 
recognition as a non-profit organization for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming 
license in order to expand their fundraising efforts to assist in providing financial aid to 
children with medical or emotional disabilities, and senior citizens with costs for prescription 
drugs.  It has been City Management’s practice to support the approval of such requests.  

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05











































































 
 
DATE:  December 9, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program Year 2006 Application Amendment 
 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
We are requesting to amend the Community Development Block Grant Program 
Year 2006 Application to read “Special Assessments Water Sewer (Sanitary 
Sewer Benefit Use Fee) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6” 
This replaces the language in the previously submitted application, that read 
“Water Sewer Improvements for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, 
Section 6.” 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Troy met on October 13, 2005 with the Oakland County Community 
and Home Improvement Division to review language for the program year 2006 
application forms, public hearing notice and agenda / resolution language.  The 
County contacted City staff on October 20th and again on November 1st with 
language changes in the application and with directions to follow in the process.   
 
City staff subsequently scheduled a public hearing and brought the application to 
City Council at the November 14, 2005 City Council Meeting for review and 
consideration.  Following submission of the completed Community Development 
Block Grant Program Year 2006 Application, the Oakland County Community 
and Home Improvement Division requested an additional change to the 
description of the program to include the words “Special Assessment”. 
 
HUD and Oakland County Community and Home Improvement Division do not 
have a Benefit Use Fee description under which we could submit reimbursement 
requests. Benefit Use Fees will therefore be paid by CDBG funds requested 
under a description to include the words “Special Assessment”.   
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



campbellld
Text Box
E-07







 
  
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager  
  
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Ass’t. City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
DATE: December 15, 2005 
    
RE:  Agenda Item – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority and Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course Deficit Elimination Plans 
 
It is a requirement of the State of Michigan that any fund or component unit of a 
municipality reporting a negative fund balance shall file a Deficit Elimination Plan 
(DEP) with the Department of Treasury after approval by the local legislative 
body. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005 the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority component unit and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course fund meet this criteria. 
Their respective plans are as follows: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
 
One recommendation arising from the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) review of our June 30, 2003 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) was to report the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) as a 
discretely presented component unit. This GFOA recommendation was 
implemented with the June 30, 2004 CAFR and created a deficit fund balance in 
the BRA. A DEP was approved by City Council January 24, 2005 (#2005-01-041-
E-6) and subsequently approved by the Michigan Department of Treasury 
February 8, 2005. The update to that plan is as follows: 
 
 
BRA Fund Balance, June 30, 2005   $ (681,449) 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 05-06        (35,000) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 05-06        792,000 
 
Estimated Fund Balance, June 30, 2006   $     75,551 
 
As originally forecast, the deficit should be eliminated by June 30, 2006. 

 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course  
 
A number of factors contributed to this deficit, the most significant being the delay 
in opening Sanctuary Lake Golf Course (SLGC). The debt service payment 
schedule was based upon the course being in full operation prior to July 1, 2004. 
That not being the case, first year revenue was well below projections while fixed 
costs remained in place. No league play and only a handful of outings were able 
to be booked at SLGC in 2004. With the playing surface being new, and trying to 
ensure golfers had an enjoyable time playing a new course, tee times were 
intentionally spread out, lowering rounds played. As a new entity with no fund 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



balance reserve available, the revenue shortfall immediately created the deficit 
situation. 
 
The course is now in full operation. Tee times have been shortened, leagues and 
outings are reserving for 2006 and increased marketing efforts are underway. 
With the current industry wide softness in golf sales it is anticipated that the 
deficit elimination will be a multi-year effort, as indicated in the following plan: 
 
 
SLGC Fund Balance, June 30, 2005   $   (799,649) 
Budgeted expenditures, FY 05-06      (1,736,940) 
Budgeted revenue, FY 05-06         1,965,380 
 
Estimated Fund Balance, June 30, 2006   $    (571,209) 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 06-07     (1,716,000) 
Estimated revenue, FY 06-07         2,000,000 
 
Estimated Fund Balance, June 30, 2007   $    (287,209) 
 
 
Estimated expenditures, FY 07-08     (1,767,480) 
Estimated revenue, FY 07-08         2,080,000 
 
Estimated Fund Balance, June 30, 2008   $       25,311 
 
Under this plan the deficit will be eliminated by June 30, 2008. Please advise if 
further information is requested. 



TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Lamerato, Asst. City Manager/Finance & Admin.  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Annual Banquets  
 
DATE:   December 1, 2005 
 
 
As in previous years, the City Council appoints a master of ceremonies for the 
annual Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 11, 2006) and the 
annual Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 20, 2006). 
 
The Community Affairs Department has already begun the planning process for 
the annual banquets to ensure a first class event.  Please have City Council 
appoint a councilperson that will act as the official master of ceremonies that 
evening and work with the Community Affairs Department.  Responsibilities 
include selecting a minister or priest to give the invocation, greeting all guests 
and distributing party favors that evening, and serving as master of ceremonies 
for the program. 
 
 
 
 
CS  

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



November 29, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:      John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

James Nash, Financial Services Director 
Fire Chief William Nelson 

  Police Chief Charles Craft 
Peggy Clifton, Human Resources Director 

  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

        
SUBJECT:     Agenda Item – Approval of Designated Medical Service Facilities 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends approval of the designated medical service facilities currently being used 
or with recommended changes for various medical services and emergencies:  
Facility  Recommended By 

Department(s) 
Services Provided Pricing 

 
Concentra Medical 
Center 

 
Human Resources, 
Risk Management, 
and Fire Department 
 

 
Pre-employment 
physicals (excluding 
Police Officer), work 
related injuries, back-up 
testing provider, 
worker’s compensation 
cases, new firefighter 
physicals, return to 
work physicals, drug / 
alcohol testing 
 

 
Prices for HR Physicals and work 
related injury treatment established 
by CMC Schedule  
 
Cost - Fire Fighter’s New Hire: 
$244.50 to $565.50* 
 
Cost - FF Volunteer Post Incentive: 
$291.08 to $611.08*  
*$320.00 Stress added or deleted 
depending upon FF 

 
Beaumont Executive 
Health Service 
 

 
Police Department 

 
Police Officer  
Pre-employment 
Physicals 
 

 
Prices range from 
$850 to $880/ physical  
New Quoted Price:  $500.00 
 
Recommend Change to  
Crittenton Hospital Due to Cost 
Savings: 
                             $366.70 / physical  

 
Crittenton Hospital 

 
Police Department 

 
TPOA Bi-annual 
Fitness Testing  
 

 
Approved by:   
Res. #2003-11-591 
$690 / Male Officer 
$665 / Female Officer 
 
Currently Expires: 12/31/05 
Extension:              12/31/06  

 
Bio-Care 
 

 
Risk Management, 
Police and Fire 
Departments 
 

 
Haz-Mat Physicals, 
Medical Evaluations 
Fire Physicals and 
Biological Monitoring 
Screening 

 
$30 / Pulmonary Function Test 
$15 / Medical Evaluation 
$250 / FF Physical 
$352 / FF Biological Monitoring   
           Screening 

 
     Page 1 of 3 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



Medical Services 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
CONCENTRA MEDICAL CENTER 
 
Although there are two Preferred Providers of Medical Services (PPOM) and Occupational Medical Facilities 
(OMF) in Troy (Henry Ford Medical Center and Concentra Medical Center), Concentra Medical Center has 
been the selected provider of choice since they staff an occupational doctor on site during City working hours.  
This provides immediate access by employees for job-related injuries, pre-employment physicals, and other 
medical services.  Henry Ford Medical Center brings in their occupational doctor from Hamtramck on an 
appointment only basis that does not fit the City’s service requirements. 
 
PPOM’s typically provide a 20%-25% discount on services provided for work related injuries.  Occupational 
Medical Facilities offer a full range of testing and medical services that are in compliance with MIOSHA 
requirements.  Since employees are regularly sent to the facility for various reasons, being within Troy’s 
borders offers a savings in down-time and travel time.   
 
 
BEAUMONT EXECUTIVE HEALTH SERVICE AND CRITTENTON HOSPITAL 
 
Beaumont Executive Health Service (BEHS) was designated as the provider of medical services for the City of 
Troy Police Department through a 1988 Police Officer’s Association arbitration ruling.  In 2001 through 
resolution #2001-07-379, BEHS was approved to conduct physical fitness tests and pre-test physicals.  Due to 
this, BEHS was also used for pre-employment physicals.  In 2003, through Resolution #2003-11-591, due to 
cost savings projections and agreement of the labor unions (allowable under the arbitration ruling), the physical 
fitness and pre-test physicals were moved to Crittenton Hospital.   
 
The pre-employment physicals continued to be conducted at Beaumont since few officers were hired.  The 
following chart shows the expenditures with BEHS that ballooned in the 2004-05 fiscal year due to the 
tremendous Police Department staff turnover.   
 

YEAR AMOUNT SPENT 
2001-2002 $1,459.45 
2002-2003 $1,480.00 
2003-2004 $4,030.00 
2004-2005 $16,300.00 
7/1/05 to Presen $0.00 

 
Due to projected cost savings and a consolidation of services, the Police Officer pre-employment 
physicals are to be moved to Crittenton Hospital with other required Police Department testing.  
 
 
BIO-CARE 
 
The Michigan Occupational Safety and Health Act mandates the City’s Respiratory Protection Program for 
employees using respirators in the course of their duties.  Bio-Care, Inc. was selected as the lowest cost 
provider through a quote process.  Since 2001, they have held the quoted prices firm for Medical Evaluations 
and Pulmonary Function Testing. Recently Henry Ford Hospital has begun to provide services needed for Fire 
Department physicals and monitoring but their pricing is at least $5 more per physical than Bio-Care.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Medical Services 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BIO-CARE - continued 
 
Another attractive service offered by Bio-Care is the ability to come on-site to do testing.  This is a real plus 
when dealing with the volunteer firefighters and employees from the DPW and P&R departments since 
downtime is at a minimum and there are no employee travel costs.  Bio-Care services have been cost effective, 
efficient, convenient, and compliant with State and Federal requirements, while most importantly, maintaining 
strict confidentiality with regards to our employee’s personal health information.  The amount spent in the 2004-
05 fiscal year was $7,687.00 but could approach $10,000 in future fiscal years. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The amount spent at each facility varies greatly from year to year based upon the number of work related 
injuries, new hires, people leaving City of Troy service, and changes in regulations requiring additional testing.  
The Police Department experienced tremendous turnover in the 2004-05 fiscal year and a large turnover is 
projected for fiscal year 2005-06 also.  Services provided to the Police Department that have historically not 
been over $10,000 may be close to this amount in future fiscal years.  Also, a minimal amount is spent annually 
at other medical facilities for special investigations drug testing, stress testing of volunteers, audiograms, and 
ambulance related emergencies where the employee is taken to the nearest full service hospital.   
 
Prices at listed facilities are in accordance with previously established price lists and subject to adjustment with 
City of Troy approval. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are budgeted in each department’s operating budget to cover these expenses.  

























































 1

DATE: December 15, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
 Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – FINAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

APPROVAL – PUD-004 (The Monarch Private Residences) – North 
side of Big Beaver Road, east of Alpine and west of McClure, Section 
20 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
PUD-004 received Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval from City 
Council on July 18, 2005.  City Council accepted the Public Benefit Requirement to 
satisfy the Preliminary Approval for the project on August 15, 2005.  
 
The project is described in The Monarch Private Residences Final Planned Unit 
Development Application, dated September 16, 2005, including revised information 
provided by the applicant following September 16, 2005.  In addition, there is a 
development agreement identified as “EFK: New Draft Dated 12/14/05”.  This 
agreement does have some minor errors that will require correction prior to the City 
Council  meeting. 
 
The Final Planned Unit Development Application complies to all the PUD provisions 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  The petitioner has completed the Final PUD Approval 
Checklist including all required approval signatures. In processing this major 
development, City Management is assured that all City of Troy building and 
development requirements can be met by the development. City Management 
recommends that City Council grant Final Approval of PUD-004, The Monarch 
Private Residences Planned Unit Development, and that City Council authorize the 
Mayor and the City Clerk to execute the development agreement. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The PUD includes a 23 floor east tower and a 12 floor west tower.  The Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) has reviewed the application and has indicated 
verbally to the petitioner that a reduction in the overall height of the project’s east 
tower from 266 feet to 245 feet might be necessary.  This would necessitate the 
removal of 3 stories from the east tower.  The FAA has not responded to the 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



 2

petitioner in writing.  The petitioner has indicated that in the event a reduction in 
height is required, they would request to modify the application to eliminate 3 floors 
from the east tower and apply those 3 floors to the west tower.  It is the opinion of 
City Management that this would be a significant change and as such, would require 
review and recommendation from the Planning Commission.  However, City Council 
has the authority to grant Final PUD Approval with the modification of the two 
towers.  The petitioner may submit elevations of their potential revisions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _________________________ _______ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Location Map. 
2. Letter from Joseph Freed and Associates, LLC (petitioner), dated December 5, 2005. 
3. Development Agreement for The Monarch Private Residences. 
4. The Monarch Final PUD Binder. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 Richard Carlisle 
 File/PUD-004 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 004 Monarch\CC Final Approval Memo 12 19 05.doc 
 







JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
THE MONARCH (PUD #4)



















































TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  
DATE: December 6, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Troy v. Saoud and Nidhal Jamo, Ameriquest Mortgage Company 
and David Ayoub, L.L.C, d/b/a Michigan Community Financial 
Services 

 
 

This condemnation lawsuit was necessitated by the Big Beaver Road widening project.  The 
property owners of 2907 Thames- Saoud and Nidhal Jamo- did not contest the total take of their 
property, or the amount of just compensation offered by the City after an appraisal.  There were two 
encumbrances on the property.  The first was a mortgage to Ameriquest.  The second was a 
mortgage held by David Ayoub, L.L.C. d/b/a Michigan Community Financial Services (“Ayoub”).  
Although the owners did not dispute the mortgage to Ameriquest, there was some dispute 
concerning the second mortgage.  Since the City required a clean title for the property, we initiated 
the condemnation action with the Oakland County Circuit Court.   

Immediately after filing the condemnation case on December 6, 2004, the Court entered an 
order that required the City to use a portion of the just compensation to pay off the entire amount of 
the outstanding mortgage to Ameriquest.  This amount was paid, and Ameriquest was dismissed 
from the lawsuit.  This Court order also required the remaining just compensation to be placed in 
escrow until the disputes between the remaining defendants could be resolved.   

The City has monitored the progression of the case, but did not actively participate in the 
dispute between the defendants.  After completing discovery, the co-defendants have now reached 
a settlement, where the City will pay the remaining just compensation, in addition to statutory costs 
and interests, to the mortgage holder David Ayoub, L.L.C.  We have drafted a proposed Consent 
Judgment to reflect this settlement and to conclude the condemnation case.   

It is our recommendation that the Troy City Council approve the proposed Consent Judgment 
(attached), and authorize our office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy.   

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05















campbellld
Text Box
F-06





December 13, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Library Café Contract 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that a new agreement be entered into with Zeyn 
Francis of 5253 Windmill Drive, Troy, MI  48085, for the operation of the Library 
Café beginning January 1, 2006 and ending on December 31, 2007.  If approved 
by City Council and agreed to by the Café Operator, the agreement may be 
extended for any number of two (2) year periods under the same terms and 
conditions except the rent may be increased. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The current Café Operator, Sandy Melki has decided that she can no longer 
operate the café.  She sought out a new operator, Zeyn Francis.  They have 
negotiated a purchase agreement for the equipment and fixtures that are 
currently owned by Ms. Melki.    
 
Mr. Francis is a Troy resident.  His wife has managed the Mideast Pastry store at 
15 Mile Rd. and Dequindre for 11 years.  She and other family members will 
operate the café on a daily basis with additional help from a current employee.     
 
There will be continuous operation during the transition from Sandy Melki to Zeyn 
Francis.  The major change in the contract is that the rent will remain at $500.00 
per month for the first year of the contract but increase to $750.00 for the second 
year.  
 
 
_____________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm 
City Attorney 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



 1

AGREEMENT FOR THE LIBRARY CAFÉ 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT entered into on __________________________, 2005, between 

the CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, a Michigan Municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and Zeyn Francis, 5253 Windmill Drive, 

Troy, Michigan, 48085, hereinafter referred to as the “Café Operator”; 

 WITNESSETH: 

 In consideration of the City granting the Café Operator the exclusive privilege and 

right of conducting the sale of food, drinks and other sundry related articles, excluding 

vending machines, in the City of Troy Library, 510 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 

48084, the Café Operator agrees as follows: 

1. RENT AND TERM OF AGREEMENT:  In consideration for the fact that the  

Café Operator is prohibited from outside identification signage, have no direct entrance/exit 

from the café area, and is limited to the sale of food/beverages unless set out in this 

Agreement, the City agrees to charge a minimum amount of rent of five hundred dollars 

($500.00) per month due on or before the first day of each month with the first payment to be 

prorated from the date of this Agreement to the end of the month indicated as the month in the 

date of the Agreement. The $500.00 monthly rent amount shall be in effect through the date 

of the Agreement  to December 31, 2006.  The rental rate will be adjusted to $750.00 per 

month for the period January 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007 at which time the 

Agreement shall terminate.  The last month’s rent of $750.00 shall be paid in advance upon 

occupancy.  Late rent payments are subject to a 10% penalty for each month.    At the end of 

the two (2) year term of this Agreement, the City may, at its option, extend the Agreement for 

any number of two (2) year periods under the same terms and conditions except the amount of 



 2

rent may be increased. Café Operator shall have the right to refuse the new rental amount 

within ten (10) days from the City Council resolution increasing the rental amount.  However, 

Café Operator’s refusal of the new rent amount shall mean that the Agreement is terminated 

and Café Operator shall only continue to operate and pay rent at the $750.00 per month 

amount for sixty (60) days from the date of the City Council resolution increasing the rental 

amount. 

Either party shall have the right to terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days 

written notice sent by certified mail as set out in Paragraph 20. 

2.  IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT:  The Café Operator shall provide an 

irrevocable letter of credit in favor of the City in the amount of $6,000.00 in effect for the 

period from the date of the Agreement to December 31, 2007.  If the Agreement is renewed 

by City Council and accepted by Café Operator as set out in Paragraph 1, by the first date of 

each year Café Operator shall present to the City an irrevocable letter of credit covering the 

full year rental amount in advance for each year the Agreement is in effect. 

As set out in this Agreement, rent is due on the first (1st) day of each month. In 

addition to the ten (10%) penalty set out in Paragraph 1, if rent is not paid by the tenth (10h) 

day of the month, the City shall be allowed to take whatever actions are available under law to 

collect unpaid rent, including collection against the irrevocable letter of credit.  The City may 

take action to collect against the irrevocable letter of credit each time a monthly rental 

payment is not paid by the tenth (10th) day of the month.  The City’s failure, for whatever 

reason, to use the remedy set out in this Paragraph on one occasion does not preclude the City 

from the use of this remedy at any other time.  



 3

3.  CONTINUOUS OPERATION:  The Café Operator acknowledges that the City 

expects the continuous operation of the Library Café during the transition of the operation 

from Sandi Melki and Scott Jackson, individually and jointly, to the Café Operator.  

Therefore, it is anticipated that Sandi Melki and Scott Jackson, individually and jointly, will 

be signing the attached Agreement for Assignment and Termination of the Library Café 

Agreement, at or near the same time that this Agreement is signed by the Café Operator, after 

which the Café Operator shall immediately open the Library Café for business as usual until 

such time as the Café Operator can consult with the Library Director regarding his own 

hours/schedules and other items which must be approved by the City under this Agreement. 

4.  USE OF PREMISES AND LIMITATIONS:  The Café Operator shall provide a 

food/beverage service to all users of the Troy Public Library.  The items sold or marketed and 

the operation hours/schedules are subject to regulation by the City and no changes shall be 

made without prior approval of the Library Director or designee. 

The Café Operator acknowledges that the non-food items he provides must not be 

competitive with items provided by the Friends of the Library and that the City has the sole 

right to make a decision that the non-food items provided by the Café Operator are 

competitive with Friends of the Library and shall be discontinued.  The City shall give written 

notice to the Café Operator when, in its opinion, he is engaging in a competitive activity or 

practice regarding non-food items.  The Café Operator shall have five (5) days from the date 

of the written notice to cease the activity or practice specified.  Continuation of the activity or 

practice shall be deemed a breach of the Agreement. 



 4

Café Operator may sell, upon approval by the Library Director of designee, non-food 

retail items for marketing/advertising purposes, such as coffee mugs, t-shirts and similar 

items, bearing marketing/advertising logos. 

5.  USE OF PREMISES AND LIMITATIONS:  Due to the fact that there is no 

exhaust vent in the café area, the Café Operator shall not cook over open flame upon the 

premises or by use of traditional gas or electric stoves.  Instead, food shall be heated by means 

of microwave, toaster, toaster oven, heating coils, coffee machines and similar methods.  The 

City has the right to order the discontinuance of any type of cooking or heating method which 

in its sole discretion believes may be a safety hazard to its personnel, the public or to property.  

The Café Operator shall discontinue use of the cooking method immediately when advised to 

do so by the Library Director or designee.  Failure to do so shall be deemed a breach of the 

Agreement. 

6.  MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES:  The Café Operator is fully responsible for all 

custodial services in the café area, including but not limited to, the maintenance of the interior 

of the premises, the counters, the service windows and all areas of the café in a clean and neat 

manner and in compliance with all City Ordinances, State law and applicable health standards 

and regulations.  The Café Operator shall maintain the trash receptacles in the café area.  The 

Café Operator is responsible for cleaning all equipment and reporting any type of mechanical 

problem to the Library Director. 

7.  CAFÉ OPERATOR’S EMPLOYEES:  The Café Operator shall provide 

appropriate uniforms and name badges for his employees and shall require that all employees 

maintain themselves and their uniforms in a clean and neat appearance.  The Café Operator is 



 5

responsible for all wages, benefits or any other conditions of employment and acknowledges 

that his employees have no employment relationship with the City. 

Since it is difficult for Library patrons to distinguish the Café as a separate operation 

from the Library, Café employee complaints received by Library staff concerning the service 

levels or demeanor of Café employees will be discussed with the Café Operator.  It is the Café 

Operator’s responsibility to take action to solve the reported employee issues immediately.  If 

the situation continues, the City will request removal of that employee from the Library Café 

operation and the Café Operator will take the requested action.      

8.  INSPECTION AND REPAIR:  The City shall have the right to enter and/or 

inspect the café area at any reasonable time.  The Café Operator will pay the expense of 

repairs to the premises and the periodic maintenance caused by normal wear and tear of the 

café area.  Structural or other significant changes to the building café area must be approved 

in advance by the City.  The City will make every effort to notify the Café Operator in 

advance if non-City employees will be entering on the premises at the City’s request.  Any 

additions, repair sand/or improvement made on the premises by the Café Operator shall 

become the property of the City. 

The City of Troy will provide a list of equipment that is the property of the Café 

Operator but not specifically located in the Café area such as the water heater, etc.  The Café 

Operator will pay the expense of maintenance and repairs including replacement if needed of 

this equipment. 

9.  NO INTOXICATING LIQUOR:  The Café Operator, his employees and/or 

agents shall not sell intoxicating liquor or permit and/or knowingly allow intoxicating liquor 



 6

to be consumed in the café area.  The Café Operator shall be deemed responsible if such 

conduct occurs. 

10.  CAFÉ SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT AND MODIFICATIONS:  The Café 

Operator shall provide all necessary equipment, supplies, building modifications and 

personnel to staff the operation of the café.  Building and/or City owned equipment 

modifications shall be approved in advance by the City and shall become the property of the 

City at the conclusion or upon termination by either party of this Agreement.  Additionally, 

the City shall approve equipment brought into the café by the Café Operator at the request of 

the Café Operator in advance of delivery to the Library. 

11.   HOURS AND CHANGES IN HOURS AND PRICES:  The operation  

hours/schedules of the café are subject to regulation by the City and, once established, no 

changes shall be made without prior approval of the City.  Current hours of Library Café 

operation are as follows: 

Monday – Thursday  8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

Friday    8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Saturday            10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Sunday   1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

Prices shall be posted for patrons and a detailed printed description of prices shall be 

available for review by the City at the conclusion of each year of the Agreement. 

12.  RECORDS:  The Café Operator shall keep accurate records of all sales and 

receipts through the use of computerized/electronic cash registers which provide daily tapes 

and reports. Those cash registers shall be approved by the City prior to commencement of the 



 7

Agreement.  The Café Operator shall submit a copy of its monthly Michigan Department of 

Treasury Sales Tax Return upon request.  An annual report, summarizing the monthly reports, 

shall be submitted to the City within ninety (90) days after the first anniversary date of the 

Agreement and each year thereafter that the Agreement is in effect.  The City shall have the 

right to inspect the books, record and inventories of the Café Operator at any reasonable time. 

13.  ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT/INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The 

Café Operator shall have no authority or power to assign, sublet and/or transfer any rights, 

privileges or interest under this Agreement without prior written consent from the city.  The 

Café Operator acknowledges that he is an independent contractor with no authority to bind the 

City to any contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

14.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Café Operator shall at all times be in 

compliance with all federal and State Statutes and City ordinances and with all Oakland 

County Health Department licensing requirements, rules and regulation. 

15.  INSURANCE:  The Café Operator shall maintain liability insurance in the 

amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for any actions, claims, liability or damages 

caused to persons and/or property arising out of the operation and/or maintenance of the food 

service and café area, in addition to product liability and workers’ compensation insurance.  

All insurance coverage shall be approved by the City.  Certificates of Insurance shall comply 

with the sample form attached hereto.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 

all policies except workers’ compensation.  All insurance companies must be licensed and 

admitted to do business in the State of Michigan.  All insurance set out herein shall be 

maintained for the duration of the Agreement.  Failure to maintain coverage or to continue to 

maintain coverage shall be considered a breach of the Agreement with immediate termination 



 8

of the Agreement at the will of the City.  The Café Operator is responsible for any deductibles 

under his policies of insurance. 

16.  INDEMNIFY/HOLD HARMLESS:  The Café Operator agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City harmless for any claims, actions, liabilities or damages arising out of the 

operation, maintenance or management of the food/beverage service or the café. 

17.  REPORTS OF CLAIMS:  Copies of all claims, damage or accident reports 

received by the Café Operator, his employees and/or agents, whether submitted to any 

insurance company or not, relating to any damage or accident that occurred or is alleged to 

have occurred on the premises or by the Café Operator,  his employees and/or agents, shall be 

sent to the City. 

18.  PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES:  The Café Operator shall be liable for any 

personal property taxes assessed against its equipment or inventory. 

19.  UTILITY COSTS:  The City will pay utility costs. 

 20.  NOTICE:  All written notices to be give under this Agreement shall be mailed by 

certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at their addresses set forth herein or 

at such address as the party may provide in writing from time to time.  Any such notice shall 

be deemed to have been received five (5) days subsequent to mailing. 

 21.  SECTION HEADINGS:  All section headings contained herein are for the 

convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any 

provisions of the Agreement. 

 22.  SEVERABILITY:  If any provision of this Agreement or the application of such 

provision at any person, entity or circumstance shall be held invalid, the remainder of this 



 9

Agreement, or the application of such provision to persons, entities or circumstances, other 

than those as to which it is held invalid, shall not effected. 

 23.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement and 

any changes thereto shall be in writing signed by both the parties unless otherwise set out in 

this Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Café Operator have executed this 

Agreement. 

 

CAFÉ OPERATOR: CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 

 

____________________________________ _________________________________ 
Zeyn Francis By:  Louise Schilling, Mayor 

 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
 By:  Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 



 10

AGREEMENT FOR ASSIGNMENT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT FOR 
LIBRARY CAFÉ 

 

 Sandi Melki and Scott Jackson, individually and jointly, of Clarkston, Michigan, 

hereby agree, with City Council’s permission, to immediately assign the Agreement for the 

Library Café and any Addendums and Amendments to that Agreement changing the terms of 

that Agreement to Zeyn Francis and waive any notice of the acceptance of that assignment by 

City Council; 

Sandi Melki and Scott Jackson, individually and jointly, of Clarkston, Michigan, 

further hereby agree to immediately terminate the existing Agreement for the Library Café 

between themselves and the City of Troy and any Addendums and Amendments to that 

Agreement extending that Agreement and/or changing the terms thereof; and, further, hereby 

waive any notice of termination under that Agreement, the Addendums and Amendments 

thereto. 

WITNESSES: 

________________________________ __________________________________ 
 By:  Sandi Melki 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
 By:  Scott Jackson 
 
 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
 __________________________________ 
 By:  Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 __________________________________ 
 By:  Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 



campbellld
Text Box
F-08









TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: December 13, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Wireless Oakland- Inter-local Agreement and License Agreement   
 

  
 

The City of Troy has received the honor of participating as one of the seven pilot communities in 
the Wireless Oakland Initiative, a public-private partnership.  The eventual goal of the Wireless Oakland 
Initiative is “to blanket all 910 square miles of Oakland County with wireless Internet service; as well as 
to break down the digital divide by offering “no-cost” or “low-cost” PCs, wireless technology, and training 
to underserved populations within Oakland County; and to enhance the commercial and residential 
character of the County by embracing technology in county and local planning practices. “  The Troy 
City Council unanimously resolved on April 18, 2005 to support Oakland County’s initiative, and to 
request consideration of Troy as one of the seven pilot communities.  At that time, the Troy City Council 
also permitted the placement of wireless equipment on City controlled infrastructure, as long as the 
equipment was placed “in a responsive and responsible manner.”   
 

Oakland County has made the Wireless Oakland Initiative a priority, and is ready to get started 
on the project.  The County has already announced that Michtel, a private provider, was the successful 
bidder.  Michtel will be providing, installing, and servicing the equipment on the designated public 
facilities in each of the participating municipalities.  In exchange for Michtel’s undertaking the risks of this 
new project, and agreeing to provide free wireless service to the entire County, the County and the 
Municipalities have agreed to allow Michtel to use existing public assets (such as light poles, antennae, 
etc.) to house the necessary equipment, at no cost.  The Municipalities will also agree to abide by the 
terms of the Model Interlocal Agreement (which relieves Michtel of the obligation of negotiating separate 
agreements with each participating community), and to waive fees (such as permit or inspection or 
construction fees) whenever possible.   

 
The County drafted a proposed model Interlocal Agreement, in order to provide the 

municipalities with some protections of their public assets. This model Interlocal Agreement has been 
reviewed and revised by a task force comprised of the legal representatives from each of the seven pilot 
communities.  Each of the participating Oakland County communities will need to execute the model 
Interlocal Agreement, which is attached for your review and/or approval.  Oakland County, as the agent 
for each participating municipality, will execute the license agreement, which is an attachment to the 
model Interlocal Agreement.  The legal task force of the seven pilot communities has also reviewed and 
revised the proposed license agreement, which is included for your review.  A proposed resolution, 
approving the Interlocal Agreement (with attachments) has been prepared for your consideration.  In 
addition, there is a resolution appointing the City of Troy’s representative to the Wireless Oakland 
Advisory Board.  Troy’s Information Technology Director, Gert Paraskevin, has volunteered to serve as 
the Troy representative, and Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director, could serve as the 
alternate, since they have both been and will continue to be involved in the project.   
 

Troy is the first of the pilot communities to seek approval of the agreement, since Troy will be the 
initial starting point for the project.  If the agreement is approved, then the first equipment will be placed 
in Troy as soon as possible.   As always, if you have any questions, please let us know.  

campbellld
Text Box
F-09































































































November 4, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management 

System Material & Labor Maintenance Proposal 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Police Department requests City Council approval to enter into a contract 
with SimplexGrinnell for a period covering 11/01/2005 through 10/30/2006, 
subject to annual increases thereafter, not to exceed 3% as determined by the 
CPI for the Detroit Ann Arbor area in accordance with the proposal entitled “City 
of Troy Integrated Security Management System Material and Labor Guide 
Proposal”.  The Proposal establishes hourly service rates for software and 
hardware systems, system engineering and design, and project management 
services.  It establishes a two-hour minimum service call and the truck charge.  It 
also establishes fixed costs for replacement parts and makes allowance for 
equipment or services not covered in the Proposal.  The waiver is requested to 
contract with the company who initially programmed the security system software 
during the construction of the Police Department.     
 
BACKGROUND 
SimplexGrinnel Fire Protection and Security Services provided the security 
system during the Police and Fire Building Renovation and Addition project.  
SimplexGrinnel was responsible for installation and programming of this complex 
and comprehensive system.  Over the last year, they have also added additional 
card readers and cameras to the system.       
 
The controlling software application is “Continuum” by Andover Controls.  This 
application is programmed to control every piece of hardware in the security 
system.  The waiver explanation is to allow the company who programmed the 
system to troubleshoot, maintain, and fix any problems with any component of 
the system while avoiding corruption of the programming.     
 
BUDGET 
The Police Department Research and Technology Operating Account 
#334.7802.070 has been designated for the funding of this project. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10









 
 
DATE:   December 5, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   5028 Abington 
 
 
 
 
On October 24, 2005, information was sent to Rui Cai Li that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, she was advised that the Ford box truck parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Ms. Li has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of January 9, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a







 





 



 



Z-711 Maple and Crooks Rezoning Request 1

DATE:  December 12, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JANUARY 9, 

2006) – REZONING APPLICATION – Northwest corner of Maple Road and 
Crooks Road, Section 29 – H-S and O-1 to B-3 (Z 711) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed zoning district is compatible with abutting zoning districts and land uses.  
The request is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and will create a B-3 zoning 
designation on a single corner parcel.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of this item at the November 29, 2005 public hearing.  City Management 
agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning 
request. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Kenny Hannawa of D & K Hannawa, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, in 
Section 29. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to rezone two parcels to B-3, Parcel B and Parcel D.  Parcel B 
is approximately 11,556 square feet in area.  Parcel D is approximately 1,800 square 
feet in area. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The two parcels are contiguous to a larger parcel that is zoned B-3.  The southeast 
corner of the parcel is zoned H-S.  The northwest corner of the parcel is zoned O-1. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-3 General Business District. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
There are 3 vacant buildings located on the subject parcel.  A vacant service station sits 
on Parcel B on the southeast corner.  Parcel D is presently used for parking and 
circulation. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



Z-711 Maple and Crooks Rezoning Request 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to rezone the two smaller parcels and create one contiguous 
parcel that is zoned B-3.  The applicant proposes a multi-tenant retail building on the 
property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Office. 
South: Bank.  
East: Service station and convenience store. 
West: Restaurant.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-3 General Business and O-1 Office Building. 
South: B-3 General Business and O-1 Office Building. 
East: H-S Highway Service and B-3 General Business. 
West: B-3 General Business and M-1 Light Industrial. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-3 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-2 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions. 

 
Mortuary establishments, when assembly area is provided off-street for a minimum 
of ten (10) vehicles to be used in funeral procession; provided further that such 
assembly area shall be provided in addition to any required off-street parking area. 
A caretaker's residence may be provided within the main building of a mortuary 
establishment. 

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities. Sleeping accommodations may be 
provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities in order to accommodate not more 
than three employees per each vehicle storage bay. 

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repair of recreational vehicles. 
 
 New and used car salesroom, showroom, or office. 
 

Governmental offices, public utility offices, exchanges, transformer stations, pump 
stations and service yards but not including outdoor storage. 

 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 



Z-711 Maple and Crooks Rezoning Request 3

 Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 

 
Drive-up Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Permitted Uses Within B-3 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 

 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or heath clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 

 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-3 District. 
 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
   

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second-hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 
 Motel or Hotel. 
 

Veterinary hospitals or clinics, provided all activities are conducted within a totally 
enclosed main building and provided further that all abutting or adjacent property is 
non-residentially zoned. 

 
 Commercial Kennels. 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building.  

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments.  

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Access to the parcel is provided on both Crooks and Maple. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map does not indicate any significant natural features located on 
the property. 



Z-711 Maple and Crooks Rezoning Request 4

Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan designates the northwest corner of Crooks and Maple as 
Non-Center Commercial.  This classification has a primary correlation with B-3 and a 
secondary correlation with H-S.  The application is therefore consistent with the Future 
Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
There are no location standards for the B-3 General Business District. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from November 29, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
3. Letter from petitioner, dated September 15, 2005 
4. Letter from Paul A. Andoni, dated November 29, 2005. 

 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 711) 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-711 Maple and Crooks B-3 Sec 29\Announcement CC Public Hearing Z-711 12 19 05.doc 
 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM O-1 AND H-S TO B-3



W MAPLE

C
R

O
O

KS

BLANEY

PREMIER

±

REZONING REQUEST
FROM O-1 AND H-S TO B-3
NW CORNER MAPLE & CROOKS
SEC. 29  (Z-711)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM O-1 TO B-3

REZONING REQUEST
FROM H-S TO B-3

0 200100
Feet

CITY OF CLAWSON











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 711) – Proposed Shopping 
Center, Northwest corner of Maple Road and Crooks Road, Section 29 – From 
H-S (Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) to B-3 (General Business) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of the City 
Management to approve the rezoning request.  A communication received by the 
Planning Department from the owner of Shield’s Restaurant was distributed to 
the members prior to tonight’s meeting.  The owner voiced concerns with the 
impact of a multiple story building and decreased visibility to westbound traffic.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked that the small rectangular parcel of the subject rezoning 
request be addressed with respect to creating a non-conformity use for the 
existing building.  Mr. Schultz noted that a multi story building could be 
constructed on the parcel to the east of Shield’s Restaurant because it is zoned 
B-3. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the parcel to the east of Shield’s Restaurant is zoned 
B-3 and that the setback requirements are the same along Maple Road.  Mr. 
Savidant briefly addressed the site plan submitted with the rezoning request.  He 
noted it appears the parking space requirements might not be met.   
 
Hathem Hannawa of H&H Design Consultants, 5600 E. Nine Mile Road, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Hannawa said the rectangular piece of 
property is being acquired from the office building to the north.  Mr. Hannawa 
said a survey of the parking spaces was completed, and they are acquiring just 
enough property to accommodate their parking needs.  He stated that the site 
plan would show that parking requirements are met by each property owner and 
would meet all site plan requirements.   
 
Tom Hannawa of 4534 W. Quarton Road, Bloomfield, was also present.  He 
addressed the existing O-1 parcel that is not maintained and currently a 
shrubbed area.  It was noted that the shrubbed property does not comply with the 
approved site plan on file. 
 
Mr. Miller said the usage of the property would not change the existing parking.  
He encouraged the petitioner to pursue a legal lot split with the City before 
executing a transfer of property.  Mr. Miller briefly addressed the review process 
as relates to lot splits.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-11-181 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the H-S and O-1 to B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest 
corner of Maple and Crooks, within Section 29, being approximately 13,356 
square feet in size, be granted.  
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 







 1

 
December 13, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(JANUARY 9, 2006) – REZONING APPLICATION – Northeast 
corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 
to H-S (Z 479-C) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and compatible with 
the existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
The applicant is proposing to redevelop the existing service station and improve 
the site.  Considering the uses permitted in the H-S district, service stations are 
one of the least demanding in terms of land area.  Because of the small size of 
the subject property, the development potential is limited in terms of potential 
land uses.  
 
The site is an appropriate location for a service station given its location on a 
major thoroughfare, and further given its proximity to other service stations and 
other automobile-oriented uses.   
 
Prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties is 
desirable; however, the property to the east is a residential neighborhood and 
expansion of commercial zoning district into this neighborhood is undesirable and 
unlikely.   
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this item at the November 
29, 2005 public hearing.  City Management agrees with the Planning 
Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
PARCEL HISTORY 
 
On June 28, 2004, the applicant submitted an application to rezone the subject 
property from B-1 to H-S.  The application was denied by City Council on 
January 10, 2005.  The applicant has submitted a new rezoning application for 
consideration.   

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 2

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The application lists the applicant and owner of the property as Andraos 
Kattouah of Space Station of Troy, Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and 
Charrington Road, in Section 23. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 21,000 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as a Marathon gas station, which received site 
plan approval and was constructed in 1966 and is a legal non-conforming use.  
The abutting houses to the east were constructed in 1968. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
H-S Highway Service. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to expand the convenience store.  The gasoline pump 
islands and overhead canopy are to remain as is. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Tax accountant and single-family residence. 
South: Restaurant. 
East: Single-family residence. 
West: Fast food restaurant and tire sales. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-1 Local Business and R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: B-2 General Business. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: B-3 General Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed H-S Highway Service Zoning District 
and Potential Build-out Scenario:  



 3

 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Retail establishments to service the needs of the highway traveler including 
such facilities as:  drug stores, convenience food stores, gift shops, and 
restaurants other than those of the drive-in or open front store type. 

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, 
and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  Sleeping accommodations 
may be provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities. 

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 New and used automobile salesroom, showroom or office. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repairs of recreational vehicles. 
 

Banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions which may consist 
solely of drive-up facilities. 

 
 Public utility buildings and sub-stations. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted 
uses. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

  
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants 
permitted within this district. 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within H-
S districts, apart from restaurants. 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Automobile service stations for the sale of engine fuels, oil, and minor 
accessories only, and where no repair work is done, other than incidental 
service, but not including, steam cleaning, undercoating, vehicle body repair, 
painting, tire recapping, engine rebuilding, auto dismantling, upholstering, 
auto glass work and other such activities whose external effects could 
adversely extend beyond the property lines.  

 
Auto washes where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the 
operation.   



 4

Auto washes, not including the sale of engine fuels, when the entire 
operation is completely enclosed within a building or structure. 

 
Uses, other than those specified in Section 23.20.06, wherein drive-up 
service facilities are the sole use of the property. 

 
 Business in the character of a drive-in restaurant. 
 
 Motel or hotel. 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a 
completely enclosed building.   

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or 
other food service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts both Rochester Road and Charrington Road.   
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other 
utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  
The Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 
General Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S 
Highway Service Zoning District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent 
with the City of Troy Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
The Location Standards for the H-S District in Article 23.40.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance provides the following: 
 The H-S (Highway Service) District may be applied when the application of 

such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use plan 
and policies related thereto, or with other land use policies of the City of Troy, 
and therefore, on a limited basis, may involve the following types of areas: 



 5

 23.40.02 Areas indicated on the Master Land Use Plan for non-center 
commercial use. 

 
 23.40.03 Areas within broader areas generally designated for Light 

Industrial use, where the City has established, through 
rezoning, areas to provide commercial and service uses for the 
surrounding Light Industrial area. 

 
The application is consistent with the Location Standards for the H-S District. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from November 29, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  
3. Letter from petitioner dated September 21, 2005. 
4. Letter from petitioner’s attorney, dated September 26, 2005. 
5. Letters of opposition (2). 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z-479 C) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-479 C Charrington Marathon Station Sec 23\Announcement CC Public 
Hearing ZOTA 279C 12 19 05.doc 
 
 
 





TORPEY

HARRIS

R
O

C
H

E
STE

RTROMBLEY

COLEBROOK

VANDERPOOL

BAKER

AR
D

M
O

R
E

BOYD

CHARRINGTON

WINTHROP

M
ILLAY

CHAUCER

DICKENS

W
AKE

FIELD

D
ALEY

H
ID

D
E

N
R

ID
G

E

MADISON

PEACHTREE

±

REZONING REQUEST
EXISTING GAS STATION
FROM B-1 TO H-S
NE CORNER ROCHESTER RD. & CHARRINGTON
SEC. 23  (Z-479 C)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-1 TO H-S

0 200 400100
Feet











PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 29, 2005 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-C) – Existing Gas Station, 
Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, Section 23 – From 
B-1 (Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Chair Strat advised the petitioner that five (5) affirmative votes are required for a 
recommendation of approval of the rezoning request, and the petitioner has the 
option to postpone his item prior to his presentation to the Planning Commission.   
 
The petitioner indicated he would like to go forward. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning and reported it is the recommendation of the City Manager to 
approve the rezoning request.   
 
Dennis Szokolay of 26021 Southfield Road, Lathrup Village, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Szokolay said expansion and improvement to the 
service station would enable the owner to sell a larger inventory of convenience 
items and would provide for a more aesthetically pleasing landscaped area.  He 
asked the members to look favorably on the rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Waller said improvements to the building and landscaping would enhance the 
appearance at this location.  He asked that consideration be given to the limited 
size of the property in terms of the site plan, noting property has been taken for 
the expansion of Rochester Road.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-182 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester and Charrington, within Section 23, being approximately 21,000 
square feet in size, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Littman, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 













campbellld
Text Box
G-02a













































































 
 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES – FINAL  OCTOBER 13, 2005 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday October 13, 2005 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
       
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Mary Shiner, Nancy Wheeler, Cheng Chen and Lauren Andreoff 
be excused. 
 
Yes: 3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of September 15, 2005 be approved. 
 
Yes: 3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-03 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



 
 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES – FINAL  OCTOBER 13, 2005 
 

 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
The 2006 Library closing dates were reviewed 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-10-04 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the list of 2006 Library closing dates be approved as presented. 
 
Yes:  3—Gregory, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The HVAC project has reached substantial completion and a punch list has been 
developed.  The Friends of the Library Book Shop will move down to the lower level 
beginning October 17, 2005.   The move is anticipated to take at least a week.  Our 
Meeting Room will be available for library programs on October 29, 2005. 
 
Quarterly Reports. 
The quarterly statistical and financial reports were reviewed. 
 
Reschedule November LAB Meeting. 
The November Library Advisory Board will be held on November 16, 2005. 
 
Board Member comments.   
Griffen asked that our automated phone message that plays when the library is closed 
be reviewed by staff. 
 
Zembrzuski stated that the Bulgarian program was great. 
 
Student Representative’s Comments. 
None 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
Gregory reported that two new Board members were appointed – one from Clinton-
Macomb Public Library and the other from Eastpointe Public Library.  The next Sirsi 
release will be loaded prior to Thanksgiving.  The Board held a joint meeting with the 
Macomb County Library Board.  The revised Annual Plan was reviewed.  State Aid will 
be going down again this year.  The Board approved the purchase of book bags that will 
be distributed to member libraries.  The new salary schedule was approved.  



 
 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES – FINAL  OCTOBER 13, 2005 
 

 3 

Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
No report. 
 
Gifts. 
Two gifts totaling $150.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items. 
October TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
12 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:05 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 6:00 p.m. on October 25, 2005 at the southeast corner of Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard, Troy, Michigan.   
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Robert Schultz Gary Chamberlain 
Thomas Strat Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mark J. Vleck Fazal Khan 
 Lawrence Littman 
 David T. Waller 
 Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

 
The site visit of the proposed Caswell Town Center, PUD 5, was not conducted because of 
lack of a quorum. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\10-25-05 Special Meeting_PUD 5 Site Visit_Final.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:35 p.m. on October 25, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Lawrence Littman Fazal Khan 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-166 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain and Khan are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Miller requested that the Agenda be revised to include item 8(a), Report on the 
Site Visit of the proposed PUD 5, Caswell Town Center. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-167 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-168 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the October 4, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes and 
the October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright reported on the October 18, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
meeting.  One item of interest relates to the Arnold Becker property located on the 
southeast corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Road (2840-2880 Rochester Road).  
The BZA approved the request to waive the required screen wall on the north side 
of the parking area where the parking lot abuts Henrietta.  The petitioner withdrew 
his request to modify the required setback of 25 feet from the north property line to 
10 feet.   
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the October 17, 2005 Joint Meeting of the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) and City Council and the October 19, 2005 DDA 
Meeting.  Discussions at both meetings related to amending the DDA boundaries. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following: 
 
• ZOTA 216 Additional Retail along Major Thoroughfares in M-1 (Light Industrial) 

Zoning District – Approved by City Council, 10/24/05; Planning Commission 
recommendation was modified by City Council.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief overview of the modifications and said he would forward 
the Resolution passed by City Council to the members.  There was discussion on 
the presentation to the City Council with respect to the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission and the City Management version.  

 
• Z 709 Rezoning Request, South side of Woodslee Street, East of Rochester Road, 

Section 27, M-1 to R-2 – Approved by City Council, 10/17/05.  
• Z 708 Rezoning Request, North side of Maple, West of Blaney, Section 29, M-1 to 

B-3 – Approved by City Council, 10/17/05.   
• ZOTA 201, Commercial Indoor Recreation in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 

– Scheduled for City Council Public Hearing, 11/14/05.  
• PUD 4, The Monarch Private Residences – Tentatively scheduled for City Council 

Final Approval in November 2005.   
 
 

8. (a) PUD 5, Caswell Town Center, Site Visit 
 
Mr. Miller reported that a site visit was not conducted this evening because a 
quorum was not present.   
 
Members and staff who walked the site identified the following site development 
concerns: 
• Parking for banquet center. 
• Stub streets that touch the property from the east and south 
• Retention and swale areas.  
 
 

TABLED ITEM 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 710) – Existing Shopping Center 
(to include proposed Marshall’s Music store), Northeast corner of Rochester Road 
and Wattles Road (4048-4060 Rochester Road), Section 14 – From B-1 (Local 
Business) to B-2 (Community Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the rezoning request that was tabled at the 
October 11, 2005 Regular Meeting.  The applicant’s request for interpretation of the 
Zoning Ordinance is on the November 15, 2005 Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
agenda.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the City Management 
to approve the rezoning request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

The petitioner was not present. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-169 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To table the item to the November 29, 2005 Regular Meeting to allow 
the Board of Zoning Appeals to address the issue.  
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Wright said he sees no need to rezone the property, and said Marshal’s Music 
store is no more out of place in the B-1 zoning district than Kinko’s, Blockbuster, or 
some of the other businesses in the shopping center.   
 
There was a lengthy discussion and comments from around the table with respect 
to going forward with the rezoning request to City Council, obtaining an 
interpretation from the BZA independently or simultaneously with the rezoning 
request, the intent of the petitioner to remain in the City, and the review of all B-1 
zoning districts.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Littman 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Mr. Wright said he would support either action that would get Marshall’s Music in 
the shopping center.  He personally feels an interpretation from the BZA would be 
appropriate and the most expeditious action to take.   
 
Members Schultz, Vleck and Drake-Batts agreed that going forward concurrently on 
both the BZA interpretation and the rezoning request is in the best interest of the 
City and most expeditious.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-10-170 
Moved by: Schultz  
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission feels that it is of the utmost importance to the 
economic viability of the City of Troy to encourage desirable businesses to remain 
and/or locate in the City.  Furthermore, the City Management should do everything 
within its powers to simplify and expedite the processes businesses must follow to 
establish and/or relocate their operations in our City; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission disagrees with the Building Department’s 
decision that Marshall’s Music does not meet the criteria for locating within the B-1 
(Community Business) zoning district, while the same department has ruled that 
Blockbuster Video and FedEx/Kinko’s meet those criteria.  While the Planning 
Commission has recommended and requested that the Board of Zoning Appeals 
provide an interpretation of the B-1 zoning district as it applies to Marshall’s Music, 
that interpretation will not take place until Tuesday, November 15, 2005; 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of Troy to expedite the ability of 
Marshall’s Music to relocate their business to a new facility within the City.  
Furthermore, because the most expeditious means of accomplishing same is to 
recommend the rezoning of the parcel in question from B-1 to B-2 and rezoning that 
parcel does not create a non-conformity with relation to the new zoning distract;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that the B-1 to B-2 rezoning request, located on the 
northeast corner of Rochester and Wattles, within Section 14, being approximately 
2.7 acres in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214-B) – 
Articles 04.20.00 and 10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E 
Districts on a Temporary Basis  
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the Resolution adopted by City Council on October 3, 2005 that 
requested the Planning Commission to set a Public Hearing on a proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment that would allow group day care homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E districts on a temporary basis.  He said the amendment would 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

essentially legalize the approximate 20 group day care homes currently licensed 
and existing at the time the amendment is adopted by City Council.   
 
Discussed at length were the following two conditions of the proposed amendment: 
 
• The date of final action by City Council that would affect the existing group day 

care homes. 
• The timeframe the temporary basis would be in affect after City Council takes 

final action.   
 
Mr. Motzny said consideration and approval of the proposed amendment should be 
based on whether the members believe a public purpose would be served.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Bjelobrk of 5581 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bjelobrk asked how many 
members of the Planning Commission live next door to or within 300 feet of a family 
or group day care home.  He also asked if any member of the Planning Commission 
has a friend or relative who operates a day care center.  Mr. Bjelobrk said he would 
be willing to swap houses with Chair Strat so he would have the opportunity to 
experience living next to a group day care home.  He voiced concern with the City 
procedure to notify only those residents living within 300 feet of existing group day 
care homes, and said the issue should be placed on a city-wide ballot.  Mr. Bjelobrk 
voiced concern that a fire in a group day care home would jeopardize his family’s 
safety and affect the cost of his insurance coverage.  He asked that group day care 
homes not be grandfathered.  Mr. Bjelobrk addressed traffic, noise, and parking 
concerns, and encouraged parents to raise their own children.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs said approximately 
800 homes have been receiving the Public Hearing notices and very few negative 
responses have come forward.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-   
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV and X, pertaining to Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E Zoning Districts on a Temporary Basis, be amended as follows:   
 

1. To remove “[Date of Final Action by City Council]” and replace and 
substitute it with “[The Approval of ZOTA 214-B by City Council]”. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Waller asked that the Resolution be amended to change all entries of 10 days to 
100 days, with reference to the timeframe of the temporary basis after the Troy City 
Council has had the opportunity to conduct a Public Hearing and take final action.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the wording of the zoning ordinance text amendment.   
 
Mr. Motzny suggested a recess to prepare the appropriate wording of the 
Resolution. 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:02 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts withdrew the motion on the floor.  Mr. Littman was in agreement 
with the withdrawal. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-171 
Moved by: Drake-Batts 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That group day care homes as defined in Section 04.20.69, licensed 
by the State of Michigan and in operation as of the date of approval of ZOTA 214-B 
by City Council, shall be permitted to continue on a temporary basis not to exceed 
thirty (30) days after the Troy City Council has had the opportunity to conduct a 
Public Hearing and take final action on any proposed revisions to Charter 39, Article 
X, related to the regulation of group day care homes as set forth in ZOTA 214.  
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the Planning Department has received several letters from 
neighbors who are opposed to group day care homes because of traffic, parking, 
and noise.  Mr. Wright said he personally thinks a group day care home is a 
commercial enterprise that should not exist in a residential zone. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E District 
 
Mr. Miller outlined the list of potential group day care home standards that were 
compiled at the October 4, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.  He reviewed the draft 
amendment prepared by the Planning Department and summarized minor revisions 
that were incorporated into the draft.   
 
Chair Strat solicited comments from around the table with respect to each standard 
listed in relation to group day care homes.   
 
[Mr. Miller exited the meeting at 9:40 p.m.] 
 
Thorough notes were taken by staff and the revised draft will be reviewed and 
discussed at the November 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.   
 
Mr. Motzny will report back on the use of Special Conditions and Special Use 
Approvals on a renewal basis.   
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller distributed copies of the original and revised By-laws.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-10-172 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That this item be tabled until the next meeting so that the members 
have an opportunity to review the revisions that were presented tonight by Mr. 
Waller.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. REVIEW OF NOVEMBER 29, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Upcoming agenda items were briefly reviewed. 
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
David Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Schafer addressed the group 
day care home matter.  He said he would appreciate getting a copy of the proposed 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

zoning ordinance text so group day care home providers would have an opportunity to 
provide informative input.  Mr. Schafer also asked for copies of the negative letters 
and emails received by the Planning Department so providers can see the nature of 
the complaints and address them.   
 
Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Childs addressed comments 
made at tonight’s meeting relating to group day care homes.  He said fires can happen 
anywhere, and traffic on public roads cannot be regulated.  Mr. Childs said it would 
seem more practical that residents would be concerned if their neighbors did not clear 
snow.  Mr. Childs requested consideration be given to grandfathering some of the 
existing day care homes and addressed a concern with the required 1,500-foot 
distance between day care homes.  Mr. Childs noted that the City of Livonia ordinance 
makes no mention of building inspections or Michigan Building Codes, and has 
successfully worked since 1999.  He encouraged members not to over-regulate the 
ordinance.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Littman said he once had lunch as chair of the Planning Commission with the City 
Manager, who took offense at a comment he made.  His comment was it seems that 
sometimes the City Manager considers the Planning Commission a necessary evil.  Mr. 
Littman said he would revise that now.  He thinks the City Manager thinks the Planning 
Commission is an unnecessary evil.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she would figure out something to do with her Tuesday evenings.   
 
Chair Strat said he is sure he will hear something about the comments he made this 
evening, but he had to air his frustrations.  
 
Mr. Littman said it’s not based strictly on last week, it’s been building.  He said you have to 
have been chair, as many members have been, to really get frustrated with it. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:29 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\10-25-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:32 p.m. on November 1, 2005 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Wayne Wright 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Christopher Kulesza, Student Representative 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-173 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Items not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. ROCHESTER ROAD FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Miller revisited the list of Problems and Opportunities that was created by the 
Planning Commission at the August 23, 2005 Special/Study Meeting.  A list of 
Findings and Trends and Goals were also briefly discussed.  There was general 
concurrence that the Planning Department should begin to develop an amendment 
to the Future Land Use Plan that included a mixed-use overlay district.  It was 
determined that an appropriate depth for the mixed-use district would be similar to 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

the depth of the commercial property on the northwest corner of Square Lake and 
Rochester Roads.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that since the section of Rochester Road between Long 
Lake and Square Lake mirrors the section between Square Lake Road and South 
Boulevard, it should be included in the Future Land Use Plan amendment.  General 
discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission asked the Planning Department to prepare a memo to 
City Council informing them of the desire of the Planning Commission to expand the 
study area.  Furthermore, the memo should explain that the proposed March 
deadline to complete the amendment would be difficult to meet whether or not the 
study area was expanded. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-174 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the study area of the Future Land Use Plan amendment for 
Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and South Boulevard be expanded to 
include the section of Rochester Road between Long Lake Road and Square Lake 
Road, therefore making it a two-mile strip rather than a one-mile strip for a mixed-
use district, including appropriate depth, space and location standards. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 5) – Proposed Caswell Town Center 
including 14 single family homes, 74 condominium units, ±19,000 s.f. retail space 
and the existing Petruzzello’s Banquet Center, Southeast corner of Rochester Road 
and South Blvd., Section 2 – B-3 (General Business), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and 
R-1D (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Brad Byarski of Michigan Home Builders made a brief presentation on the proposed 
project.  General discussion followed the presentation. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested a gateway entrance sign would greatly enhance the major 
intersection.  Mr. Byarski agreed a gateway sign would be an appropriate 
improvement. 
 
Mr. Schultz said, based on his experience of living in condominium developments for 
the last 32 years, he does not believe there is enough guest parking on the site.  Mr. 
Schultz expressed concern over the trees proposed to be saved within the 20-foot 
wide greenbelt along the north and south property lines in the single-family portion of 
the property.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Strat asked whether storm water runoff from the condominium units would flow 
east into the bioswale and then south into the retention basin. 
 
John Hennessey, Project Engineer, 2674 West Jefferson Avenue, Trenton, responded 
in the affirmative. 
 
Chair Strat asked why a bioswale was not used along the southern property line of the 
single-family residential area.   
 
Mr. Hennessey responded that this area is 3 feet lower than the retention pond and 
water would therefore not flow to the pond. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if the Planning Commission would have the opportunity to review 
the proposed changes should the bank change the number of drive-thru lanes after 
receiving Final PUD Approval.   
 
Mr. Miller responded that if any significant changes were proposed for the project 
following Final PUD Approval, an amendment would require a recommendation by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Waller asked if any of the uses would require site plan approval following PUD 
approval. 
 
Mr. Miller responded that Final PUD approval includes Final Site Plan Approval for 
each of the proposed uses. 
 
 

5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 214) – Articles 04.20.00 and 
10.30.00, Group Day Care Homes in the R-1A through R-1E Districts 
 
Mr. Miller presented the report that was prepared for the Planning Commission for the 
meeting.  General discussion followed.  The Planning Commission discussed each 
proposed provision separately and voted on each item.  The Planning Department 
indicated they would make the proposed changes and bring the draft ZOTA 214 back 
to the Planning Commission for the November 29, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
Mr. Littman disagreed with the inclusion of the list of Planning Commission actions on 
ZOTA 214.  He suggested that the information was misleading.  General discussion 
followed.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-11-175 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission produce its own record of the meetings of 
ZOTA 214 as to what was and was not done with the ZOTA at different meetings 
and that the attached record not become part of the minutes or public record. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes: Khan, Littman, Strat, Vleck 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Waller 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Wright  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
 

6. PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – Landscape Screening 
of Off Street Parking 
 
Mr. Savidant led a discussion relating to landscape screening of off-street parking 
areas.  The intent of the discussion was to provide direction to the Planning 
Department for preparation of a draft ZOTA.  The following Items were discussed: 
 
• Applicability. 
• Type of Screening. 
• Species. 
• Height. 
• Plant alternatives. 
• Parking lot trees. 
• Maintenance. 
 
The Planning Department will prepare a draft ZOTA based on this input. 
 
 

7. PLANNING COMMISSION BY-LAWS 
 
Mr. Waller indicated that he received the comments on the proposed revisions that 
were prepared by the Assistant City Attorney.  He will incorporate the proposed 
revisions and email the revised text to the Planning Commission.  
 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Waller indicated that the Beavers were on display in the center court of Somerset 
North.  There would be an auction at Somerset North on Saturday, November 5, from 6:00 
p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Khan indicated that he received three phone calls from people who had seen the 
Beaver he sponsored.  He was offered work in Troy as a result of the phone calls but was 
unable to take the work because of his position on the Troy Planning Commission. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL NOVEMBER 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain reminded those in attendance at the meeting and watching on television 
that he did not want any contact or communication related to his position as a Planning 
Commissioner at his home, be it through email, telephone, letters or personal contact. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\11-01-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, November 2, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:05 P.M. 
 
Present:  S. Burt, member  A. Done, member  
   A. Fuhrman, alternate T. House, member   
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate 
   J. Stewart, member  S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, alternate member EA  
   P. Hammond, member UA 
   P. Manetta, member EA 
 
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF OCTOBER 5, 2005 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of  October 5, 2005 be approved.  Supported by 
Fuhrman.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation was in attendance to discuss 
playground structures.  All current structures in Troy are accessible and meet or exceed 
the ADA guidelines.  There are several parks in the planning stage that may be 
conducive to a boundless playground.  Jeff thinks the boundless playground concept is 
a terrific idea but can be quite expensive.  To contact Jeff with any questions, call 248-
524-1061. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
We have a new member on our Committee, Jeff Stewart.  Welcome, Jeff. 
 
Burt contacted the Boundless Playground organization.  She reported that our 
Committee could register online and possibly receive contributions made by private 
business in the Troy area.  
 
Werpetinski found there to be no mention category of available services and 
organizations for people with disabilities in the Community Directory.   and would like 
this changed.  Cindy Stewart agreed to rectify this situation. 
 
Kul Gauri has resigned from this Committee and should be removed from the 
membership list. 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

 2

ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Burt Werpetinski will attend the City Council meeting on 11/14/05, House on 11/21/05 
and 11/28/05, and Fuhrman on 12/5/05.  
 
Done will phone local high schools to inquire about an interested student member for 
this Committee.  
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Committee members were given copies of Table 1106.1 from the Michigan Building 
Code.  This table sets forth the required number of accessible parking spaces based on 
the total spaces provided.  If Council approves a parking variance, the required 
accessible spaces may be reduced based on the total number of spaces approved.  
Since this table doesn’t differentiate between building use, members are asked to 
consider building uses in which a higher percentage of accessible spaces would be 
needed. 
 
The Committee’s new suggestions for accommodating persons with disabilities at the 
voting precincts were incorporated into the Election Training Guide.   Tonni 
Bartholomew, City Clerk, will address the accessibility issue again when the new HAVA  
laws are in effect in 2006. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Troy Today had an article regarding a grant writing course being offered at the Library.  
However, it was already full but will be offered again in February, 2006. 
 
Werpetinski submitted a question to the local media at two forums for all City Council 
Candidates on their stand on accessibility for Troy citizens and a boundless park.  They 
all agreed to give their support. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Werpetinski attended the meeting discussing the Clawson 911 calls agreement and 
reports that it would not affect emergency services for Troy residents. 
 
Werpetinski also reports that the agenda for the City Council meeting is not correct in 
listing the current members of our Committee.  
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 9:00 which was seconded by House. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

 3

 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, November 2, 2005, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Angela Done called the Meeting to order at 7:05 P.M. 
 
Present:  S. Burt, member  A. Done, member  
   A. Fuhrman, alternate T. House, member   
   D. Pietron, member  M. Pritzlaff, alternate 
   J. Stewart, member  S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member EA  
   P. Hammond, member UA 
   P. Manetta, member EA 
 
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF OCTOBER 5, 2005 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of  October 5, 2005 be approved.  Supported by 
Fuhrman.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation was in attendance to discuss 
playground structures.  All current structures in Troy are accessible and meet or exceed 
the ADA guidelines.  There are several parks in the planning stage that may be 
conducive to a boundless playground.  Jeff thinks the boundless playground concept is 
a terrific idea but can be quite expensive.  To contact Jeff with any questions, call 248-
524-1061. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
We have a new member on our Committee, Jeff Stewart.  Welcome, Jeff. 
 
Burt contacted the Boundless Playground organization.  She reported that our 
Committee could register online and possibly receive contributions made by private 
business in the Troy area.  
 
Werpetinski found there to be no category of available services and organizations for 
people with disabilities in the Community Directory. Cindy Stewart agreed to rectify this 
situation. 
 
Kul Gauri has resigned from this Committee and should be removed from the 
membership list. 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

 2

ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
 Werpetinski will attend the City Council meeting on 11/14/05, House on 11/21/05 and 
11/28/05, and Fuhrman on 12/5/05.  
 
Done will phone local high schools to inquire about an interested student member for 
this Committee.  
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Committee members were given copies of Table 1106.1 from the Michigan Building 
Code.  This table sets forth the required number of accessible parking spaces based on 
the total spaces provided.  If Council approves a parking variance, the required 
accessible spaces may be reduced based on the total number of spaces approved.  
Since this table doesn’t differentiate between building use, members are asked to 
consider building uses in which a higher percentage of accessible spaces would be 
needed. 
 
The new suggestions for accommodating persons with disabilities at the voting 
precincts were incorporated into the Election Training Guide.   Tonni Bartholomew, City 
Clerk, will address the accessibility issue again when the new HAVA  laws are in effect 
in 2006. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Troy Today had an article regarding a grant writing course being offered at the Library.  
However, it was already full but will be offered again in February, 2006. 
 
Werpetinski submitted a question at two forums for all City Council Candidates on their 
stand on accessibility for Troy citizens and a boundless park.  They all agreed to give 
their support. 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Werpetinski attended the meeting discussing the Clawson 911 calls agreement and 
reports that it would not affect emergency services for Troy residents. 
 
Werpetinski also reports that the agenda for the City Council meeting is not correct in 
listing the current members of our Committee.  
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 9:00 which was seconded by House. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

 3

 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                           
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

The Vice-Chairman, William Nelson, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:37 A.M. on Wednesday, November 2, 2005. 
 
PRESENT:  William Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
   Rick Kessler 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Ted Dziurman 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Dziurman from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. DZIURMAN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 5, 2005 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 5, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JACOB SNABES, AVER SIGN COMPANY, 
1475 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a 26 square foot tenant 
wall sign on the face of a building, on an area not occupied by the tenant. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to erect a 26 
square foot tenant wall sign on the face of 1475 W. Big Beaver on an area not occupied 
by the tenant.  Section 9.02.03 D of Chapter 78 states that each tenant may have one 
wall sign on the ground floor not to exceed 20 square feet in area and must be located 
on the face of the area occupied by the tenant.   
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 5, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the other tenants in the building to be notified of this request; and to 
allow the owner of the building to be present regarding this request. 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac went on to say that Building Department staff had received several phone 
calls from Aver Sign Company indicating that they wished to withdraw this request.  
Staff asked that Aver Sign Company send a letter asking for withdrawal but as of this 
date no written communication has been received.  The petitioner was not present. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Jacob Snabes, Aver Sign Company, 1475 W. Big 
Beaver, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a 26 square foot tenant wall sign on the 
face of a building, on an area not occupied by the tenant. 
 

• Petitioner was not present. 
• Petitioner failed to provide information requested by the Board. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  BOB HART, 832 BARCLAY, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to maintain a 5’ high wrought iron style fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to maintain a 
5’ high wrought iron style fence installed 26’ from the property line along Barclay Drive.  
This property is a double front corner lot.  It has 30’ front yard setback requirements 
along both Barclay Ct. and Barclay Drive.  However, since the home has a common 
rear yard to rear yard relationship to the home behind it, Chapter 83 limits the height of 
fences to 48” in the front setback along Barclay Drive.  The applicant received a permit 
to install a 5’ high fence 30’ from the front property line, however, he installed the fence 
26’ feet from the property line. 
 
Mr. Hart was present and said originally the fence was to be installed by a company that 
worked for his pool installer.  Mr. Hart had difficulty dealing with the fence company and 
found that he would be able to save a considerable amount of money on labor, which 
would enable him to install a nicer fence than what was originally planned.  A permit 
was applied for but the fence was not installed until Mr. Hart received the denial letter 
from the City. 
 
Mr. Nelson opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are five (5) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hart said that he purchased this home in 1988 and has constantly upgraded the 
property.  He believes that he has an obligation to make his property as attractive as  
possible because he is on the corner.  Mr. Hart has received awards from the City of 
Troy due to the appearance of his property. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if he planned to keep the landscaped berm and Mr. Hart said that he 
would like to keep it and also add additional plantings.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked how much space there was between the fence and the pool and Mr. 
Hart said he thought it was about 8’.  If the fence has to be brought in closer, there will 
be very little room between the pool and the fence line.  Mr. Hart then asked what the 
difference was between the setbacks for a 4’ or 5’ fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the issue before the Board is that the petitioner could put up a 4’ 
high fence and it could remain at the 26’ setback line, or he could leave the 5’ high 
fence and move it back to 30’. 
 
Mr. Hart said that because his home sits on the corner there is a great deal of visibility 
and he would rather have the 5’ high fence to increase safety.  Mr. Hart said that he 
thought that teenagers could probably jump a 4’ high fence, but feels that the 5’ height 
would make it more difficult. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Bob Hart, 832 Barclay, relief of Chapter 83 to maintain a 5’ high 
wrought iron fence 26’ from the property line along Barclay Drive. 
 

• Petitioner has provided landscaping to screen the fence. 
• Neighbors have expressed approval of this fence. 
• 5’ height will provide greater security. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MONDRIAN PROPERTIES, WESTON DOWNS 
CONDOMINIUM, SOUTHEAST CORNER OF WATTLES AND FINCH, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect a second 99 square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a second 99 square foot ground sign.  Section 85.02.05, C, 2 of Chapter 85 limits 
signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster Housing Developments to one sign that will  
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
not exceed 100 square feet in area and one additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet 
in area.  A permit has already been issued for a 99 square foot ground sign.  The  
proposed sign exceeds the 36 square foot limit on the second ground sign per Chapter 
85. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  Mr. Stimac indicated that the Parcel ID number 
provided on the petitioner’s application was incorrect and therefore the wrong people 
were notified of this hearing.  This error was discovered this morning when a neighbor 
called indicating that he lived adjacent to this property and was not notified.  Mr. Stimac 
asked that the Board postpone action on this item until the meeting of December 7, 
2005 to allow the Building Department to properly notify the property owners in the 
surrounding area. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mondrian Properties, Weston Downs 
Condominium, southeast corner of Wattles and Finch, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 
second 99 square foot ground sign until the meeting of December 7, 2005. 
 

• To allow the Building Department the opportunity to re-publish the Public Hearing 
notices. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL DECEMBER 7, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  ROBERT CHAPA, SIGN-A-RAMA, 888 W. BIG 
BEAVER, for relief of the Sign Ordinance to install a second 36 square foot ground 
sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 of the Sign 
Ordinance to erect a second 36 square foot ground sign at 888 W. Big Beaver.  Section 
85.02.05, 3 (b & c) of the Sign Ordinance allows one ground sign for each building in 
accordance with Table 85.02.05 and one additional ground sign for each building, not to 
exceed 36 square feet in area.  Currently there is one 86 square foot ground sign and 
one additional 36 square foot ground sign on this site.  This proposed sign exceeds the 
number of signs allowed. 
 
Mr. James Jonas, owner of this property, Bob Chapa from Sign-A-Rama, and Mr. Aaron 
Van De Mark, business owner were present.  Mr. Jonas stated that it is very difficult to 
have a retail space inside an office building without the proper exposure.  They wish to 
put this sign along Big Beaver to allow greater visibility for traffic heading west.  This 
ground sign would be placed approximately 30” off of the ground and they would put in  

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
the shrubbery as planned.  This sign would provide a space for both “The Melting Pot” 
and “Morton’s Steakhouse”. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he has driven through this area both in daylight and in the 
evening and he agrees that this site requires more signage.  Mr. Kessler also stated that 
this area has a lot of amenities and believes that the extra signage would be an asset. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if this sign would have any impact on additional signage for this 
building and Mr. Stimac said that it would not unless the Board chose to make that a 
condition. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the illumination from this sign would project further out than the 
sign box.  Mr. Chapa said that this is a typical internally illuminated box sign. 
 
Mr. Nelson opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Robert Chapa, Sign-A-Rama, 888 W. Big Beaver, relief of the Sign 
Ordinance to install a second 36 square foot ground sign where Section 85.02.05 3(b & 
c) of the Sign Ordinance allows one ground sign for each building, and one additional 
ground sign for each building, not to exceed 36 square feet in area. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will aid in identification of this site. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  STEVEN VANDETTE, CITY ENGINEER, 
REPRESENTING MR. & MRS. SCHOENROCK, 3018 WATERFALL, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence in a front yard along the south property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence along the south property line at 3018 Waterfall.  This property is at 
the northeast corner of the intersection of Waterfall and Big Beaver and is considered to  
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
be a double front corner lot.  Chapter 83 of the City Code limits fences located in front 
yards to a height of no more than 30”.  The Building Code Board of Appeals granted a 
variance in 1974, which allowed a 4’ high fence along the south property line. 
 
Mr. Vandette was present and stated that this fence would be installed as part of the Big 
Beaver widening project.  An additional lane is being added adjacent to this residence  
and has caused the curb of Big Beaver to be moved closer.  Space will be provided 
between the sidewalk and the fence and the City is planning to add additional plants 
and landscaping to help screen this fence.  The neighbor to the east of this property 
submitted a letter of approval for a 8’ high privacy fence for this location.  The petitioner 
would like the 8’ high privacy fence, but would be happy if the Board were to allow for a 
6’ high fence. 
 
Mrs. Schoenrock was present and stated that they have lived in this home since 1974 
and when Big Beaver was widened in 1988, they were promised by the City that trees 
and a berm were going to be installed along their property line.  This never happened.  
Mrs. Schoenrock went on to say that they are unable to use their back yard in the 
summer due to the noise and exhaust from traffic along Big Beaver.  People throw 
garbage and litter in their yard and as people are walking along the sidewalk they peer 
into the kitchen window.  Realtors have told the Schoenrocks that they have lost 
between $10,000.00 and $12,000.00 value in their property due to their proximity to Big 
Beaver.  Mrs. Schoenrock asked that the Board grant this variance to help them. 
 
Mr. Nelson opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant Steven Vandette, City Engineer, representing Mr. & Mrs. Schoenrock, 
3018 Waterfall, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence along the south 
property line. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Absent a variance, literal enforcement of the Ordinance would be unnecessarily 

burdensome. 
 
Yeas:  All – 4 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          NOVEMBER 2, 2005 

The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      William Nelson, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 7



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Nov. 3, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Nov. 3 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at 
10:10 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Pauline Noce, Member  
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    David Ogg, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  Carla Vaughan, Staff  
 
 JoAnn Thompson announced that Marie Hoag has resigned.  
     
Absent: None 
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Red Hughes 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-11-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by James Berar  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 6, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming announced that there will be a reception for newly appointed Superintendent of 
Schools Barbara Fowler at Athens High School on November 10 from 3-5 pm.  Two students 
at Troy High School got perfect scores on the ACT test.  She also announced several 
upcoming craft shows. 
 
Red Hughes announced that he is a write-in candidate for City Council. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill Dixon reported that two shuffleboard and two bocce 
courts will be built at the Community Center, probably in the spring of 2006.  Carla reported 
that the department is in the process of taking bids for this project and it probably will have to 
go before Council.   
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla provided copies on the catering contract 
and the committee discussed possible changes to recommend.  It was decided to send a copy 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Nov. 3, 2005 

2 

of the letter that they sent to City Council in September to the Council again adding that they 
are awaiting a response.  They will also copy the letter to the Parks and Recreation Director. 
 
Lunch Room Rules:  Carla reported that Emerald has agreed to allow treats any day.  The 
revised rules are now posted.  
 
New Business 
 
Change of Meeting Time:  Carla reported that she checked east entrance handicapped 
parking at 10 a.m. and 1 pm each day for a week during October.  All spaces were in use at 
both times with the following exceptions:  On Monday, one space was open at 10 a.m., and on 
Tuesday, two spaces were open at 1 p.m.   The earlier two-week survey checked the spaces 
at 9:30 a.m. and 1 pm and found the east spaces filled only three times.   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-11-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon  
 
RESOLVED, That the Committee will change their meeting time to 1 p.m. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Merrill Dixon suggested canceling the December meeting.  The Committee voted 5 to 2 in 
favor of meeting in December. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported on shuffleboard (see old business) and the new pathways 
at the Civic Center.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that she attended a session in Lansing to ask legislators not to 
cut funding for transportation for elderly and handicapped. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 1600 flu shots were administered at the Nov. 1 clinic at 
the Community Center.  The health department reduced the number of outreach clinics from 
25 to 7 this year.  The senior store had their biggest day ever that day - $675 in sales.  Carla 
contacted the Troy Times and has the email address of a reporter who will include senior 
program information in the Community Briefs section.  They do not want to initiate a “Senior 
Briefs” at this time.  Massage therapy is very popular.  Only in it’s second month, the days it is 
offered has been doubled and all sessions are full.  There are 52 people signed up for leaf 
raking.  Troy People Concerned has 130 volunteers lined up.    
 
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that there was a speaker on the use of inhalers. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Nov. 3, 2005 

3 

Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have compiled an 
excellent service directory and that they are looking for a corporate sponsor to print the 
directory. 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one unsigned suggestion asking for a clock 
by the therapy pool.  There are three clocks in the pool area and the pool staff feels that this is 
sufficient.  The suggestion was not signed, so we cannot ask for more information.   
 
Comments:  A discussion was held about the new Medicare Prescription Drug Program, and 
the Committee would like Carla to provide as much information as possible to Troy seniors and 
to try to have some enrollment dates at the Troy Community Center.  
 
Mr. Berar suggested announcing the coming of the bocce and shuffleboard courts in the next 
senior newsletter. 
 
JoAnn Thompson announced that Jo Rhoads is attending a lot of meetings and maybe some 
other committee members would like to share the responsibility. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at noon.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 

 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Wednesday, November 22, 
2005 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:31 pm. 
 
B.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 

Jim Cyrulewski     
Cele Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski     
Bob Berk  
Bill Hall  
Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston 
Jeff Stewart 
Marilyn Musick 
Berj Alexanian 
 

City Staff Present: 
Cindy Stewart, Jeff Biegler, Bob Matlick, Tonya Perry, Gerry Scherlinck 
 

Absent:  Bill Hall 
  
 
  
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-38 
Moved by CW 
Seconded by Cele Dilley excuse Bill Hall 
 
RESOLVED that absent members are excused 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-39 
Moved by Cele Dilley, seconded by Jim Cyrulewski  
RESOLVED that the minutes from the October 25, 2005 Troy Daze Advisory Committee 
meeting are approved as submitted. 

Yeas: All 
Nays: None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 
 
 
C. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Election of Troy Daze Advisory Committee Officers 
 
Nomination for Chairperson – Cele Dilley  
Resolution #TD-2005-11-39 
Motion to close the nominations for Chairperson by Kessie Kaltsounis, 
seconded by Jim Cyrulewski.  Approved Unanimously 
 
Motion to elect Troy Daze Chairperson 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-40 
Motion to elect Cele Dilley as the chairperson by Jim Cyrulewski, seconded by 
Kessie Kaltsounis.   
RESOLVED that Cele Dilley is elected Troy Daze Advisory Committee 
Chairperson.  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Motion for Vice-Chairperson - Bill Hall 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-41 
Motion to close the nominations by Mike Gonda, seconded by Kessie 
Kaltsounis.  Approved Unanimously 
 
Motion to elect Troy Daze Vice-Chairperson 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-42 
Motion to elect Bill Hall as the vice-chairperson by Mike Gonda, seconded by 
Kessie Kaltsounis.   
RESOLVED that Bill Hall is elected Troy Daze Advisory Committee Vice-
Chairperson.  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Motion for Treasurer – Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-43 
Motion to close the nominations by Cele Dilley, seconded by Mike Gonda.  
Approved Unanimously 
 
Motion to elect Troy Daze Treasurer 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-44 
Motion to elect Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski as the treasurer by Cele Dilley, 
seconded by Mike Gonda.   
RESOLVED that Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski is elected Troy Daze Advisory 
Committee Treasurer.  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 
 
 

2. Appointment of activity chairpersons:  
Motion to approve the slate of activity chairpersons as listed 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-45 
Motion to elect the following slate of activity chairpersons as listed by Jim 
Cyrulewski, seconded by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  
RESOLVED that the attached list is approved as the Troy daze Activity 
Chairpersons.  
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Event/Position Name 
 
General Chairman Jim Cyrulewski 
Treasurer Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Auto Shows 
  - Classic and Custom Cars Scott Wharff 
  - New Cars Allison Miller 
 Megan Cyrulewski 
Booths Cele Dilley 
Corporate Sponsor Sub-Committee Cheryl Whitton- Kaszubski 
 Jim Cyrulewski 
 Cindy Stewart 
 Bill Hall 
 Mike Gonda 
Craft Show Karen Mooradian 
 Darcel Connors 
Cutest Toddler/Infant TBD 
Demographics Bob Preston 
Entertainment Lois Cyrulewski 
EthniCity Padma Kuppa 
    - Entertainment Daniel P. O’Brien 
 Shirley Darge 
Festival Information Booth Bill Hall 
50-50 Drawing-Knights of Columbus Tom Tighe 
5K Race/Walk-Troy Jaycees Jennifer Vickers 
Magic Cauldron 
  - Crafts/Activities Karen Mooradian 
 Darcel Connors 
  - Entertainment/Games Marilyn Musick 
 Janet Ferstle 
Mr. Troy Bill Hall 
 Cindy Stewart 
Naturalization Ceremony Cindy Stewart 
Office Manager Kessie Kaltsounis 
Opening Ceremony Tim McAvoy 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 
P.A. Announcements TBD 
Pageants  
  Junior Miss Troy TBD 
  Miss Troy TBD 
  Coordinator TBD 
Photography Contest Tom Duszynski 
Publicity Cindy Stewart 
Senior Sensation Marie Hoag 
 Joanne Stine 
Shuttle Service Jeff Super 
 Phil Musick 
Special Needs Children Linda Hannon 
 Jeff Stewart 
 Sandy Macknis 
Special Needs Adults Jeff Stewart 
 Sandy Macknis 

 Student Art      Kathie Troshynski 
 Barb Samuels 

Talent Shows Diane Mitchell 
 Volunteers Sandy Macknis 
 Youth/Parent Contests Danielle Numerosi 

Waffle Breakfast Jonathon Campian 
 Operations Mike Gonda 
 Emergency Bob Berk 
 Assistant  Poncho Massaini 
 Signs/Banners Bob Bishop 
  Jim Hattan 
 Electrical  Jeff Winiarski 
 Sound Bob Broquet  
 Henry Ford Hospital Dr. Earlexia Norwood 
 Police Explorers Terry Harrison 
  Wayne Lepola 
 Fire Explorers Don Hudson 
 Police Liaison Gerry Scherlinck 
 Fire Liaison Bob Matlick 
  Tonya Perry 
    Parks & Rec Liaison Jeff Biegler 
  Ed Carpus 
 Disabilities Committee Liaison Susan Burt 
 
 
 

3. City Staff Report 
 

Report from Gerry Scherlinck and Cindy Stewart  
Based on reports from Troy Police Chief Charles Craft, Community Affairs 
Director Cindy Stewart and City Manager John Szerlag in a memo to Troy City 
Council. 
 
We need to revamp vision of the Troy Daze Festival. 

 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 
 
Perception of the Advisory Committee is that bigger the better.  We have been 
asked to re-evaluate the mission and goals of the festival and it move back 
toward being a family event than a carnival.   

 
Things changed after 8 p.m.  Problems with teens (fights, objects thrown from 
rides, drugs, altercations at Teen event, etc); vendors refusing to close at the 
required times; Police Explorer being verbally abused (parents do not want 
them to come back).  Suggestions include: reducing hours of festival 
operations; discontinue/restructure the teen event; limit use of Police Explorers; 
Police review what vendors sell or give-away; prohibit dogs; establish and post 
general rules. 

 
Next year Police will arrest people.  They should have this year for fighting, 
altercations, and abuse.  Major issues this year related to teenagers - lewd 
conduct, police being harassed, drugs, fights.  It was not a family event. 

 
Bigger is not better.  Step back and look at major liability that could happen. 

 
Parade – 4 years ago Committee decided to grow the parade.  95% were part 
of Troy community.  But last year we had four to five times more people in the 
parade than watching the parade. 

 
The comments and report is not meant to be negative toward the Troy Daze 
Committee – they all work hard – give 110%. 

 
Jim C – Commented on how to make improvements, spot trends for the future. 
There is a lack of respect for police officers & festival committee as a whole.  
Society is changing.  Safety is key and we need to look realistically where 
organizations are from 70’s to today.  Membership down – volunteerism 
decreasing.  Balance revenue vs. expenses, parking $, ride $ after 10 p.m.  
What activities to scale back.  This is a wake up call. 

 
Gerry and Cindy said we need to schedule a meeting with City liaisons to focus 
on suggestions and make plans before turning in budget. Cindy will email the 
Advisory Committee with meeting date for the week of December 12. 
 

 
 

D.   OLD BUSINESS 
1. None 

 
 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2005-11-XX 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
 
 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED     
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Bob Berk, Chairperson 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 
 

TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE  
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Wednesday, November 
22, 2005 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 8:09 pm. 
  
A.  ROLL CALL 
 
Present:

Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston 
Cecile Dilley  
Padma Kuppa 
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Pancho Masssaini 
Sandy Macknis  

Bob Berk 
Jim Cyrulewski   
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Dan O’Brien  

   Tom Kaszubski         
   Jeff Stewart         
 Berj Alexanian  
   Jeff Super 
 
City Staff Present:

Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick  

   Tonya Perry 
   Cindy Stewart 
   Gerry Scherlinck 
    
B.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Moved by Cheryl Whitton, seconded by Jim Cyrulewski - Meeting minutes from 
October 25, 2005 are approved with corrections related to attendance.  Approved 
unanimously. 
 

C.  TREASURER’S REPORT 
Balance as of October 31, 2005 
Revenue: $152,060.76 
Expenses: $113,474.53 
 
Committee asked that Financial Report be mailed to Advisory Committee with monthly 
agenda.  Cheryl Whitton will be mailing all event chairpersons the budget information 
from 2005.  Send back to her as soon as possible with changes for 2006 

 
D.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. November meeting notice.  
2. Letter from TYA looking for youth recognition nominations. 
3. Notice regarding Delphi bankruptcy – sent since they were past sponsors. 
4. Thank You Letter from Troy Post Office. 
5. Thank you note from a talent show winner. 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 

 
 

E. EVENTS CHAIRPERSONS 
 

1. MFEA Convention Summary (Cele, Cheryl, Tom, Jim and Lois attended) 
Learned a lot at excellent workshops – corporation sponsorships, youth 
activities, etc. 

 
Doing many things correctly but can learn and do things differently.  Jim did a 
workshop on talent shows. 
 
Talent Show Suggestion – prohibit provocative dress – complaints came into 
City Hall after festival & while parents were watching Talent Shows.  Need 
rules. 
 
 

F.  OLD BUSINESS 
 
a. Corporate sponsor update:  committee has met and changes will be made 

before mailing out information to corporate sponsors.  We exceeded our 
corporate sponsor budget, which is great in this economy. 

b. Committee manual update – needs to be done prior to April, 2006. 
c. Printing Specs – remove parade brochure, change color for parking stickers 

(see attached) 
d. Craft Show – if we use a company, we need to bid it out.  Darcel and Karen 

will attempt to plan it out themselves.  They will decide by end of year if 
feasible.   

 
 G.  New Business 

 
a. Ethnic Entertainment proposal Line-up:  Lisa will attend January meeting 
b. Fee Changes – increase fee for government agencies/politicians.   We have 

commercial food vendors - add non-commercial food vendors.   
c. Preliminary Request memo – Item #2 - think about parade issue.  Item #7 – 

think about a solicitation policy. 
e. TYA Nominations - get information to Jim Cyrulewski by end of December. 
f.   Action Item List 

 
 
   Suggestion Review List for 2006 
 

• Reduce number of Festival Committee meetings to April, July & August. 
Suggestion to add October to brainstorm about past festival. 

• Add to Advisory Committee meetings for October, November, January, 
February, March, May, June, September under Old business – event/activity 
chairperson needs update. 

• Add special December meeting for budget approval. 
 



TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT        November 22, 2005 

 
 

Committee Comments -  
 
Jim:   Bob Berk has done an excellent job as festival chairman after Kyle Dilley.  
Bought us fireworks.  We appreciate all his hard work.   

 
Budget Meeting date - Tuesday, December 20 7:30 p.m. 

 
Mike Gonda:  “Night” is what creates problems.  Look at day events and 
maximize activities and events. 

 
Gerry: There is a lot of brainstorming we need to do, rules and regulations, 
more entertainment, food, more kids’ events. 

 
Problem with budgetary issues – back away from trying to bring in more $, look 
at positive activities.  Learn from the past and react positively. 

 
 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Moved by Jeff Super, Seconded by Cele Dilley to adjourn the Festival Committee Meeting. 
Approved unanimously.  Meeting is adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 30, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on November 30, 2005 at  
7:00 PM at the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, 1450 E. South Boulevard.  Andrew Corey 
and Jia Luo called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Andrew Corey (Co-chair) 

Maxine D’Amico 
Jessica Kraft 
Jia (Lisa) Luo (Co-chair) 
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall 
Neil Shaw  
Katie Thoenes 
Nicole Vitale  
Karen Wullaert (Secretary) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alexandra Bozimowski, Neil Shaw,  
Rishi Joshi (late),  

VISITORS: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Kevin Grubb, Golf Course Manager 
Paul Toski, Sanctuary Lake Golf Academy 

STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2005-11-24 
  Moved by Vitale 
  Seconded by Niemiec 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 26, 2005 be approved. 

   
  Yes: All – 10 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 3  - Bozimowski, Joshi, Shaw 

 
3. Attendance Report: Updated through October meeting - To note and file 
     
4. Futures Process 
   Cindy Stewart (Community Affairs) 

Presentation of Futures Process.  Youth Council members will be 
assigned to committees and take part in process.  Council 
members are to submit committee preferences to Cindy Stewart by 
December 5, 2005.   

5. Visitor: 
 Kevin Grubb, Golf Course Manager 

1. Overview of Golf Division 
2. History and overview of Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
3. History and overview of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
4. Budget process and goals 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   November 30, 2005 
 
 

 2

6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
  Resolution # TY-2005-10-25 

  Moved by Wullaert 
  Seconded by Kraft 

  
 RESOLVED that Alexandra Bozimowski and Neil Shaw are excused. 

   
  Yes: All - 11 
            No:      None  
  Absent: 2 – Bozimowski, Shaw 

   
  

7. Youth Council Comments – Discussion about flyer that Jessica Kraft created for 
the naming of the Teen Room competition. 

8. Public Comments - None 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 P.M. 
 
_______________________________ 
Andrew Corey, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott E. Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
 
 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: December 21st at 7:00 P.M. @ Troy Community Center 

 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Dec. 1, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, Dec. 1 
2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at  
1 PM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair David Ogg, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Pauline Noce, Member excused, Jo Rhoads, Member   
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-12-001 
Moved by Bud Black  
Seconded by Merrill Dixon  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Nov. 3, 2005 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 5       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming reported on new school programs and upcoming band concerts. 
 
Wade Fleming thanked the committee for their support and encouraged them to contact him at 
any time. 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill reported that the exact construction date is as of yet 
unknown, but it still planned for 2006.  Carla will announce it in the newsletter as soon as we 
have a better idea of when it will open.  
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla handed out a correspondence from Carol 
Anderson explaining how City Council did acknowledge receiving their letter in September.  
The Committee has fulfilled their role of advising City Council, and city staff is working with 
Emerald Food Service to address the Committee’s concerns.  Carla will keep the committee 
updated on the negotiations with the caterer.   
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Dec. 1, 2005 

2 

 
 
New Business 
 
None 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that they discussed changing their meeting date and 
development of the parcel of land at Square Lake and Livernois where the fire station used to 
be.  
 
Medi-Go:  No report 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that there will be people on site to help seniors register for 
the Medicare Prescription Drug Program as well as speakers and educational programs - 
details in the January newsletter.  Fifty-eight seniors attended a program on this topic in 
November, and we held a volunteer training session here on November 28.   There were 58 
vendors at the craft show on November 18 and 32 exhibitors at the Fine Art Show on 
November 30. 
 
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion that there be a senior rate for 
all parks and recreation classes - Dance It in particular.  She has advised the writer about the 
low-income scholarship program and passed the suggestion on the person in charge of the 
adult fitness classes.  Dance It is $105 for a 12 week session ($4.37 per class).  By 
comparison, the senior muscle conditioning class is $55 for 10 weeks ($2.75 per class).  
Dance It does allow flexible class attendance.   A discussion was held about what the minimum 
age for a senior should be.   
 
Comments:   
 
James Berar expressed his appreciation for the leaf raking service.   
 
Merrill Dixon suggested canceling the January meeting but the committee decided they would 
meet in January.   The committee will cancel their meeting if the Troy Schools are closed due 
to inclement weather. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:05 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair              Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 7, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, December 7, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   William Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 2, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 2, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All - 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MONDRIAN PROPERTIES, WESTON DOWNS 
CONDOMINIUM, SOUTHEAST CORNER OF WATTLES AND FINCH, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to erect a second 99 square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a second 99 square foot ground sign.  Section 85.02.05, C, 2 of Chapter 85 limits 
signs in Multiple Family Housing or Cluster Housing Developments to one sign that will 
not exceed 100 square feet in area and one additional sign not to exceed 36 square feet 
in area.  A permit has already been issued for a 99 square foot ground sign at the 
southeast corner of Wattles and Finch.  A second sign is proposed for the northeast 
corner of the intersection of Finch and the new private street Seabiscuit. The proposed 
sign exceeds the 36 square foot limit on the second ground sign per Chapter 85. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of November 2, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow the Building Department to publish a new Public Hearing.  It was 
discovered that the Parcel I.D. number on the original Public Hearing notice was 
incorrect and a new Public Hearing notice was required.  The corrected Public Hearing 
notice was sent out in accordance with the requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Joe Maniaci of Mondrian Properties was present and said that this proposed sign 
would be identical to the ground sign at Wattles and Finch.  The sign would consist of  

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
metal sign letters on a rock wall.  Because the wall is considered to be part of the sign, it 
exceeds the size of a second sign as allowed by the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the wall that supports the lettering is counted as part of the 
allowable signage.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this sign would be the same as the other sign and Mr. Maniaci 
said that the raised lettering will be the same on both walls. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that six (6) objections have been received regarding this request, 
although most of the objections were regarding the flags and the lights.  The proposed 
sign would have letters that are 10’ wide and 1 ½’ high for a total of 15 square feet.  
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the wall that the letters would be placed on is 5’ high and 18’ 
long.  The Ordinance states that the sign is what differentiates it from the background.  
Mr. Stimac also stated that the petitioner could come back to the Board and ask for a 
variance for the wall, as Chapter 83 states that a fence in the front setback could only 
be 30” in height.  If a variance was granted for the height of the wall, the petitioner could 
put the sign lettering on it and they would comply with the Ordinance.  Either way a 
variance would be required from this Board   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are six (6) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Maniaci stated that he would be more than willing to put a dimmer switch on the 
lighting for the flagpoles to try and eliminate some of the objections by the neighbors.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he was hoping that the people that objected to this request 
would have come to the meeting to express their opinions, because he does not believe 
the wall or the sign are the problem.  He believes it is the flags and the lighting.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what recourse the petitioner would have if this request was denied.  
Mr. Maniaci said that he would probably come back to the Board asking for a variance 
regarding the brick wall.    Mr. Maniaci also said that he feels that they have tried their 
best to work with the neighbors by adding more tress and putting in a landscape barrier 
between their property and the property in this petition.  Mr. Maniaci said that they have 
exceeded the landscape requirements and this would be a natural rock wall.  He is 
more than willing to put the lights on a timer and would also be willing to put in lower 
wattage light bulbs.   
 
Mr. Richnak said that sometimes when there is nothing in an area, and all of a sudden 
there is a new development, the neighbors don’t always feel that this is an  

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
improvement.  Mr. Richnak also said that he did not believe this second sign would be 
objectionable to people driving in the area. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson  
 
MOVED, to grant Mondrian Properties, Weston Downs Condominium, southeast corner 
of Wattles and Finch, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a second 99 square foot ground sign 
at the intersection of Finch and Seabiscuit. 
 

• Petitioner adjusts the lighting of the flagpoles in consideration of the surrounding 
neighbors. 

• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
 

Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  BASEMENT EXPERTS, 4451 REILLY DR., for 
relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to convert a basement to habitable area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to convert the basement at 4451 Reilly to habitable area.  The plans 
submitted indicate installation of a suspended ceiling over a majority of the basement 
with a 6’-10” finished ceiling height and a ceiling dropped to a height of 6’-3” under 
existing ductwork.  Section R 305 of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code, requires a 7’ 
minimum ceiling height in habitable rooms and 6’-6” minimum ceiling height for dropped 
areas under ductwork and beams. 
 
David Shipley of Basement Experts was present and stated that this is the same 
concept as presented in other variance requests.  The present basement is 7’ from floor 
to the bottom of the floor joists.  There is an existing I-beam that they are planning to 
cover with ½” finished grade plywood.  They will attempt to snug everything up as much 
as possible. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked why they needed to put in a suspended ceiling rather than a drywall 
ceiling.  Mr. Shipley stated that the Corning system is designed to hold a suspended 
ceiling and a dry walled ceiling would not allow access to gas lines or water lines.  
Basically there is a 1” difference between dry wall and the dropped ceiling.  
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they could design something where they would not require a 
dropped ceiling and Mr. Shipley said that the owner wants part of this basement to used 
as a craft room for his wife, and the other part of the basement would accommodate his  

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 7, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
pool table.  Mr. Shipley also said that they will elevate the ceiling into the stairway and 
will maintain clearance at the bottom of the stairs. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the homeowner could be present the next time such a variance is 
sought and Mr. Stimac indicated that staff could not mandate that the homeowner 
attend the meeting, however, Building Department staff would strongly urge them to 
attend.  Mr. Shipley also stated that they try to convince them to come also. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the petitioner had talked to Owens Corning about the possibility of 
submitting to have this part of the State Code changed.  Mr. Shipley said that Owens 
Corning had changed the State Law in Ohio regarding ceiling height of basements and 
presently are trying to change the Ordinance in the State of Michigan. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the request of Basement Experts, 4451 Reilly Dr., for relief of the 
2003 Michigan Residential Code to convert a basement to habitable area, which will 
result with a 6’-10” finished ceiling height and a ceiling dropped to height of 6’-3” under 
existing ductwork. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Dziurman wished everyone a Happy Holiday. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:52 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 4



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a











DATE:           December 1, 2005
TO:                John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:           Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:    Permits issued during the Month of November 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 4 $266,100.00 $2,345.00
Parking Lot 2 $9,000.00 $230.00

Sub Total 6 $275,100.00 $2,575.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd. New 1 $299,000.00 $2,238.00
Fnd./Shell New 1 $450,000.00 $3,295.00
Tenant Completion 1 $1,500,000.00 $9,645.00
Add/Alter 14 $1,600,800.00 $13,121.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00
Parking Lot 2 $178,408.00 $1,543.00

Sub Total 20 $4,028,208.00 $29,942.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 11 $2,087,287.00 $16,232.00
Add/Alter 23 $481,026.00 $5,870.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 9 $105,922.00 $1,678.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 2 $342,000.00 $2,684.00
Repair 1 $40,000.00 $425.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 48 $3,056,235.00 $26,989.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 4 $35,519.00 $585.00

Sub Total 4 $35,519.00 $585.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $8,400.00 $195.00
Repair 1 $975.00 $230.00

Sub Total 2 $9,375.00 $425.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $30,000.00 $355.00

Sub Total 1 $30,000.00 $355.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $875,000.00 $6,270.00
Parking Lot 1 $670,205.00 $4,842.00

Sub Total 2 $1,545,205.00 $11,112.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



s

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 2 $35,000.00 $470.00
Signs 44 $0.00 $4,755.00
Fences 8 $0.00 $120.00

Sub Total 54 $35,000.00 $5,345.00

TOTAL 137 $9,014,642.00 $77,328.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Cert. of Occupancy 31 $2,641.05
Plan Review 121 $7,700.00
Microfilm 30 $418.00
Building Permits 137 $77,328.00
Electrical Permits 181 $12,927.00
Heating Permits 152 $8,171.00
Air Cond. Permits 70 $3,810.00
Plumbing Permits 93 $9,423.00
Storm Sewer Permits 27 $2,936.00
Sanitary Sewer Permit 21 $799.00
Sewer Taps 17 $5,876.00

TOTAL 880 $132,029.05

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 51 $255.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 16 $240.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 14 $14.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 7 $350.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 8 $80.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 4 $60.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 19 $190.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 122 $1,229.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 143 $19,405,253.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 234 $16,039,899.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 229 $8,974,377.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 207 $14,432,280.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 176 $7,490,327.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 202 $13,132,327.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 207 $11,424,698.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 169 $12,606,760.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 137 $9,014,642.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00 1930 $127,725,083.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

38

53

9 11 15
8

14
20

11

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Dec 1, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 300 JOHN R A  384,000.00WILL H HALL & SON
Commercial, Add/Alter 700 TOWER 600  245,000.00GALE CONSTRUCTION CO.
Commercial, Add/Alter 600 WILSHIRE  189,000.00DENNIS LETWER
Commercial, Add/Alter 201 W BIG BEAVER 1101  170,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC
Commercial, Add/Alter 201 W BIG BEAVER 1040  300,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,288,000.00

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New 3129 CROOKS 3149  450,000.00SYNERGY GROUP, INC.

Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  450,000.00

Commercial, Foundation New 3754 ROCHESTER  299,000.00PROJECT CONTROLS SYSTEMS, INC.

Commercial, Foundation NewTotal  299,000.00

Commercial, Parking Lot 740 JOHN R  151,518.00OAKLAND MALL LLC

Commercial, Parking LotTotal  151,518.00

Commercial, Tenant Completion 888 W BIG BEAVER 111  1,500,000.00R D OLSON

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  1,500,000.00

Industrial, Add/Alter 2921 INDUSTRIAL ROW  240,000.00DEMBS ROTH GYSELINCK CONST

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  240,000.00

Religious, Add/Alter 2160 E MAPLE  875,000.00DORIAN CONSTRUCTION

Religious, Add/AlterTotal  875,000.00

Religious, Parking Lot 1825 E SQUARE LAKE  670,205.00DAN MOUNTNEY

Religious, Parking LotTotal  670,205.00

Total Valuation:  5,473,723.00Records  13



campbellld
Text Box
J-02c

























December 14, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Results of Individual Council Interviews  

Having Budgetary Implications 
 
 
 
I wish to thank all of you for taking time out of your schedule to meet with me and 
discuss your perspective of Troy’s future vision.  As the governing body, you are the 
navigator responsible for charting our future course as a community, and the good news 
is that there are many shared values.   
 
As promised at our December 5, 2005 Council meeting where we discussed this matter, 
I’m reducing to writing those issues having fiscal year 2006-07 budget implications 
where the majority of you are in agreement.  In other words, your direction to me as a 
governing body is to submit a budget document containing the following elements: 
 
1) No increase in property taxes. 
 
2) Continuation of the debt service transfer of .25 mills to operating millage without 
 increasing the overall tax rate of 9.45 mills. 
 
3) Maintain a high level of municipal services.  However, if there needs to be a 
 reduction in service, look first to non-essential areas which are defined as leisure 
 activities incorporating the following departments: 
 

 Parks and Recreation 
 Outdoor Education Center 
 Library 
 Museum 

 
Further, look to an increase in fees in the above-referenced leisure areas in order 
to maintain the high level of service.  Of course, a business case justifying any 
fee increase would first have to be performed. 

 
4) City management to always look at efficiencies, and privatization where cost 

effective. 
 
5) We should strive to maintain a General Fund balance of at least 12 percent. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



6) Capital expenditures priority follows: 
 
 a. Infrastructure 
 b. Park Development 
 c. IT Improvements 
 
7) Management should examine alternative modes of transit based on a business 

case analysis. 
 
8) It’s important to have Troy keep it’s “above-the-norm” rating by our residents 

when compared to other cities that participated in the International City 
Management Association (ICMA) citizens survey. 

 
During our December 5 discussion on this matter, I was also asked by Council 
members to increase marketing efforts of the City and to seek grants to help offset 
operational/capital costs.  In addition, the City Attorney’s Office was asked to look into 
current cases regarding cities who use private advertising which exclude alcohol and 
tobacco products. 
 
As always, feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEM\2005\12.19.05 – Results of Council Interviews 
 
c: Department Directors 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: December 13, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Macomb County Ethics Committee Policy  
 

 
  
 
 

 
At the December 5, 2005 City Council meeting, Councilman Lambert requested a copy of the 

recently publicized Macomb County ethics policy be included in the December 19, 2005 City Council 
agenda packet.   However, Macomb County has not yet formally adopted an ethics policy.  
According to Macomb County, the proposed policy was an agenda item for the December Ethics 
Sub-Committee Meeting.  However, the meeting, which was scheduled during this week, was 
cancelled.  The Ethics Sub-Committee is expected to discuss the proposed ethics policy at their 
January meeting, and forward it to the Macomb County Board of Commissioners if consensus is 
achieved at the sub-committee level.   

 
The Macomb County officials expressed some reluctance in providing a copy of the current 

draft policy, in light of the anticipated revisions to the policy.  Therefore, I will continue to monitor the 
progress of Macomb County, as well as any other communities that have adopted or implemented 
ethics policies.  I remain ready to present this information to Council at the earliest possible date that 
there is time for an in-depth discussion of the options available to the City of Troy.   

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.  

campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06


	AGENDA: December 19, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA:  Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a) Certificates of Appreciation to all City Departments/Divisions from the Mayor and City Council In Recognition of Outstanding and Dedicated Service to the Community
	b\) Presentation from Representative Rob�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3539 Delaware
	C-2 Request for Special Use Approval for Outdoor Seating in 

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10:  �
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  M�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  O�
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000.00:  Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 2005
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  E�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 6:  G�

	E-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Stat
	E-6 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 20
	E-7 Approval of Quit Claim Deed for Part of Vacated Bronx Av
	E-8 Request for Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authori

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA); and Planning Commission b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Commi
	F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host – 
	F-3 Approval of Designated Medical Service Facilities
	F-4 Final Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-004 (The M
	F-5 Proposed Consent Judgment – Troy v. Saoud and Nidhal Jam
	F-6 Request for Special Meeting: Chapter 13 Ordinance Amendm
	F-7 Library Café Contract
	F-8 Petition to Create the Gibson Intercounty Drain
	F-9 Wireless Oakland – Inter-local Agreement and License Agr
	F-10 Bid Waiver – Integrated Security Management System Mate

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5028 Abi�
	b\) Rezoning Application – Northwest Cor�
	c\) Rezoning Application – Northeast Cor�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a) Request to Amend Chapter 42, Flood Plain Management


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Proposed Resolution To Include 527 Reports On The City 

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Library Advisory Board/Final – October 13, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Final – October 25, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 25, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – November 1, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Nov
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Nov
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – November 2, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – November 3, 2
	Troy Daze Advisory-Festival Committee/Draft – November 22, 2
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – November 30, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 1, 2
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 7, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Letter to Oakland County Drain Commissioner John McCulloch f
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Nov
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2005
	City Manager – Results of Individual Council Interviews Havi
	City Attorney – Macomb County Ethics Committee Policy

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to City Manager John Szerlag from Sus

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Letter from MML Workers' Compensation Fund Congratulati

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Time Permitting, the City Manager Would Like to Continue

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



